Public Document Pack

Date of meeting Monday, 20 May 2013
Time 7.00 pm
Venue Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, Merrial Street,

Newcastle-under-Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 2AG

Contact Louise Stevenson ext 2250

Transformation and Resources Overview

and Scrutiny Committee

AGENDA

PART 1 - OPEN AGENDA

Apologies
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of interest from Members on items included in the agenda.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Pages 1 -4)

To consider the minutes of the previous meeting of this Committee held on 7 March 2013.

THE REPORTER (Pages 5 - 14)
To receive a report updating the Committee on developments regarding the council’s
newspaper ‘The Reporter’.

FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT, (Pages 15 - 26)
QUARTER 4 2012/13

To receive the Financial and Performance Management Report for the last quarter of
2012/13.

BUDGET PREPARATION, SCRUTINY AND APPROVAL (Pages 27 - 30)
PROCESS 2014/2015

To consider a report outlining the process whereby the 2014-2015 budget will be
prepared, scrutinised and approved.

CONSTITUTION WORKING PARTY (Pages 31 - 32)
To receive a briefing note to update the Committee of the current position of the working
group.

Modernisation of the Post Office Network (Pages 33 - 60)



9 KEELE GOLF COURSE - INTERIM MAINTENANCE AND (Pages 61 - 66)
MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND LONG TERM OPTIONS
This item has been included on the agenda to keep Members informed of the current
position.

10 COUNCIL PLAN 2013-16 (Pages 67 - 94)
For information only

11 WORK PLAN (Pages 95 - 96)
To discuss and update the work plans to reflect current scrutiny topics and to consider
potential scrutiny topics for the forthcoming Municipal Year.

12 URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100B (4) of the
Local Government Act 1972.

Members: Councillors Mrs Burgess, Cairns, Clarke, Fear, Hambleton, Mrs Hambleton,

Mrs Heames (Vice-Chair), Howells, Jones, Mrs Peers, Mrs Shenton (Chair),
Stringer and Waring

Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training/development requirements from any of the
items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the

attention of the Democratic Services Officer at the close of the meeting.

Officers will be in attendance prior to the meeting for informal discussions on agenda items.



Public Document Pack Agenda ltem 3

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Thursday, 7th March, 2013
Present:- Councillor Mrs Elizabeth Shenton — in the Chair
Councillors Mrs Burgess, Clarke, Hambleton, Mrs Heames, Howells,
Mrs Peers, Stringer and Waring
APOLOGIES
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest stated.
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

Resolved:- That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 January, 20123 be
agreed as a correct record subject to Councillor Stringer being noted as present.

FLEXIBLE WORKING FOR BOROUGH COUNCIL EMPLOYEES

Consideration was given to a report updating Members on the current position in
regard to flexible’/homeworking by officers.

The number of officers working from home had increased over time, with at present,
182 officers being able to access remotely. It was stated that the number of log-ins
did increase during inclement weather.

On 14 March, there would be a ‘work from home’ day for all of those on the scheme.
This was to test out the system for business continuity should the need arise. The
test would also include a period whereby the system would switch to Kidsgrove.
Resolved:- That the information be received.

UNIVERSAL CREDIT/WELFARE REFORM

Members received a presentation from the Council’'s Head of Revenue and Benefits,
David Baker on Universal Credit/Welfare Reform. A copy of the presentation was
handed to Members at the meeting.

A discussion followed with questions being raised by Members:

Members were advised that the anticipated collection rate for 2013/14, with the
updated system would be 98%.

The officers in the Revenues and Benefits Section were facing a huge task with the
changes. They had agreed to work extra hours where possible.

A request was made that the information, contained within the presentation be made
available to all sixty Members of the Council.

1 Page 1



Page 2

Once the implementation of the changes was underway, Mr Baker would report back
to this Committee with any issues that may require scrutiny.

Members were advised that there was a national guide on the Reform which could be
localised and given to Members for reference.

Resolved:- (a) That the information be received.
(b) That all Members receive information on this issue.
(c) That an information sheet be produced for Members.

(d) That a report on the implementation of the changes be brought
to a future meeting.

CONSTITUTION WORKING GROUP

The Chair gave a verbal report to Members on the current position regarding the
Constitution Working Group.

One of the elements that the Working Party has been tasked with is to consider the
saying of prayers at Full Council. A questionnaire was issued to all elected Members
and responses were collected on the evening of the Full Council meeting on 27
February 2013 with a few received later that week.

Eighteen responses were received, giving a return rate of 30%. A simple breakdown
for each question is as follows:-

What did those responding consider to be the start of each Full Council meeting?

o After prayers have been said and the announcement of the first agenda item
— 7 (38%)

e The entrance of the Mayoral party and prayers being said signified the start of
the meeting — 11 (62%)

When asked about whether a reasonable approach would be a district session for
prayer 15 minutes prior to each Full Council meeting, the responses were similarly
split:

e Yes-—9(50%
e No-7(39%)
¢ Not answered or no opinion — 2 (11%)

Regarding the effect of a decision being taken about prayers, which the respondent
was not happy with extracted a varying response:

No effect — 11 (62%)

Withdrawing prayers at 7pm would have a negative effect — 3 (16%)
Keeping prayers at 7pm would have a negative effect — 2 (11%)
Not answered — 2 (11%)

Finally, suggestions for other elements for the Working Party to consider included:



Finally, suggestions for other elements for the Working Party to consider included:

Any minutes silences to be held after the apologies.
Prayers should not be confined to Christian themes.
Established Case Law.

Human Rights

Secular Principals of Government

Working Group established to look at prayer content.

The Constitution Working Party’s next meeting is on Monday 11 March and feedback
from the Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be
considered.

In addition, the Constitution would require further updating to include areas such as
the Staffing Committee, Cabinet Panels etc.

The issue of appointing substitute Members for Committees during periods of long
absences would also be considered. This could not be done for Regulatory
Committees however.

Resolved:- That the information be received and the comments noted.

WORK PLAN

Members considered the Work Plan for this Committee. There should be an update
on the Post Office network for the May meeting. In addition, the Council plan went to
the meeting of the Cabinet last night therefore at the next meeting of this Committee
there should be more detail.

Resolved:- That the information be received.

COUNCILLOR MRS ELIZABETH SHENTON
Chair

3 Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda ltem 4

THE REPORTER

BRIEFING NOTE FROM THE HEAD OF COMMUNICATIONS
TO TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES OSC
2 MAY 2013

Purpose of the Briefing Note

To update the Scrutiny Committee on developments regarding the council’'s newspaper The
Reporter. This follows comments made by members when the committee considered the
procurement proposals for the Reporter in September 2012.

Recommendations

a) Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee accepts the information
included within the report.

b) The committee considers what comments it would like to make to the portfolio holder
responsible for Communications, Transformation and Partnerships on future developments in
relation to The Reporter.

Reasons

To keep the Scrutiny Committee informed of developments and actions following their previous
consideration of matters relating to the council’s newspaper the Reporter.

Background

In March 2013, contracts awarded to two separate companies for the print and distribution of the
borough council’'s newspaper the Reporter expired. These contracts had been in place for four
years. They were initially for a two-year period with options for negotiations with the contract

providers for two separate 12-month extensions — both of which were taken up.

On 3 September 2012, Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee received
a copy of a report which was to be considered by Cabinet on 19 September 2012 which confirmed a

procurement process had taken place to recruit new service providers for print and distribution.

The report confirmed that although that process had resulted in a distribution provider being
secured, only one company had come forward for the print element and because of this there were
concerns that the council may not be able to demonstrate it would be getting value for money if it
proceeded to appoint.

Cabinet were therefore to be asked to agree for a second print procurement process to go ahead at
the earliest opportunity and for the results of that process to be reported back in due course.

1 Page 5



This was done on 14 November with Cabinet accepting the appointment of new print and

distribution providers.

Cabinet was told that trying a new approach on procurement had been very successful with nine
print companies coming forward to supply tender documents. Cabinet noted that the agreement
which had been secured with the Yorkshire Web print company would ensure an increase of around
30 per cent in the number of pages printed in the Reporter each year without the need to increase
the Reporter print budgets.

Issues

At its meeting on 3 September 2012, the Scrutiny Committee raised a number of points which it
asked officers to consider. Those points are addressed below and the information provided will
hopefully enable members of the scrutiny committee to consider any further comments they would

wish to make to the relevant portfolio holder.

Staffing
Members questioned whether there would be any impact on staff as a result of the new contracts
agreed for 2013/14.

The Head of Communications can confirm that the agreements will not impact on staff. When the
council took a decision to produce 10 editions each year, a freelance writer was brought in on a
casual basis to produce additional material as and when required. This represented better value for
money for the council as the freelance was self-employed and therefore the council did not have to

meet any on-costs.

When the Government reviewed its guidelines on local authority publicity and said councils should
produce no more than four publications each year, the agreement with the freelance was brought to
an end at no cost to the council. All current research, writing, page design photography and
advertising sales commitments for the Reporter are currently met in-house.

Different formats

Members asked whether producing The Reporter in a format different to a tabloid newspaper would
help to reduce costs.

Page 6 2



The most popular alternative to a newspaper format is an A4 magazine style format similar to
Staffordshire County Council’s “Your Staffordshire” magazine which residents in the borough should
have delivered to their homes. Stoke-on-Trent City Council’s “City Life” was produced in a similar A4

magazine format.

This type of format has been considered previously for the Reporter but was dismissed because
production prices were actually higher than a tabloid newspaper.

Further research has recently taken place following the questions raised by scrutiny committee. And
this has shown the price differential is still in the market place.

Quotes from service providers show that for 57,000 copies of a16-page A4 magazine similar to
“Your Staffordshire” would cost the borough council around £5,200 to print per edition or £20,800 a

year.

The contract negotiated with Yorkshire Web — the council’s new print provider - for 57,000 copies of

a 16-page tabloid newspaper is around £2,000 per edition cheaper - equivalent to £8,000 a year.

There are several reasons for this. Principally, news print is still cheaper to buy than the higher

grade paper which publishers of A4 magazines use.

Secondly, news print companies buy their paper in enormous volumes and can pass on some

economies of scale to customers.

Thirdly, different finishing techniques are used for A4 magazines which can add costs. For instance,
the county council’'s magazine is spine glued and rotary trimmed to a finished specific size.

Advertising

Members questioned whether the number of external advertisements had increased or decreased in

recent years.
Figures show revenue from external sources in the last three financial years as:
2012/13 - £8,208

2011/12 - £16,834
2010/11 - £9,838

3 Page 7



Page 8

Some analysis of the figures has taken place and this would suggest a gradual reduction in
the placement of advertisements by external parties.

In 2010/11, the council was involved in an agreement with a private company which sold
advertising space on its behalf. Revenues were split on a 50/50 basis which means the total
revenue for that year was £19,676.

That company ceased to trade at the beginning of the 2011/12 financial year and the sale of
advertising space and the associated graphics work was taken in-house despite a reduction
in staffing levels in the Communications Department and concerns over a lack of expertise in
this specialist sales area.

Sales did fall and it can be seen that revenue went down by around 20 per cent and this
downward trend has continued in the current financial year.

It should be noted that four publications a year adheres to the Recommended Code of
Practice on Local Authority Publicity which was revised by the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government in 2011.

Online v hard copy

Members asked whether there could be a greater focus on an online Reporter and if this

could help to reduce the number of printed copies produced for each edition.

The Reporter is placed online after each edition is produced. Page turning technology is

used to make this a very user-friendly experience for residents.

There are a number of difficulties with trying to focus on reducing hard copies and

encouraging residents to get Reporter news purely online.

They are:-

a) Management of a delivery database — this would be a huge task with almost 55,000
addresses in the borough. Maintaining an up-to-date resource for which homes have
opted for online news alone would be a monumental task as it would have to be
refreshed four times a year.

b) A different delivery mechanism would have to be introduced which would involve the
council paying for hard copies to be delivered as second class mail. This would cost far
more than the current system which involves the council using the Royal Mail “walk sort”
arrangements where all postal staff deliver en masse to homes in the borough during a
six day delivery window.

c) Costs — the staff costs and distribution costs associated with this idea would far outweigh
any financial savings. Members should bear in mind the new Reporter contracts recently
negotiated will mean that in the year ahead it will cost around £5,800 to print and then

deliver a Reporter to all homes in the borough.



Change of design style

Members questioned whether the style of the Reporter could be revamped.

Over the years the look of the Reporter has changed significantly as you can see in
Appendix A which accompanies this report.

This continual development and re-design is often only really noticed once editions which
reflect changes of style and design are placed alongside each other.

Since the Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee raised the issue
at its previous meeting there have been further changes to reflect comments and indeed,
these have been noticed by some senior elected members who have contacted the
Communications Department to pass on their comments and favourable views over how the
council’s newspaper currently looks.

Some of the most recent production changes include:-

e A change to the type of news print used for the Reporter. The new type of print is
60gsm and is 100 per cent recycled improved news print.

o A review of working practices in the Communications Department to increase the
time devoted to design/production processes. This has resulted in an improved
design quality on pages which helps the reader access information.

¢ Increased training and new working practices for the in-house photography.

Some of the most recent style/design changes are intended to give a cleaner, modern up-to-
date look to pages. They include:-
* Fewer heavy boxes around content and the removal of boxes around
photographs; greater use of subtle tints and colour blocks to differentiate new
items. This creates a lighter, more cohesive look.
* A fine rule is used to separate certain features and advertisements.
* Cut-out photographs with pull quotes used to highlight and break-up text.
* A cleaner masthead and “inside panel” introduced together with re-designed
“footers” that link pages and promote key messages.
* To create a more consistent feel, headlines are restricted to 60pt and straplines (in
colour) are 18pt.
* A cleaner, easy to read font family was selected to give variety and emphasis - bold and
medium sans and sans serif fonts are used for text. The general size used is eight and a half
point to give more characters to a line and therefore more text to a page whilst remaining
very legible and easy to read. Introduction paragraphs to main stories are in 10pt.
* The overall colour scheme uses blue and green to reflect the council's own corporate

colours. The use of actual corporate colours are reserved for council ads and logos etc.

5 Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Reporter 1989

NEWCASTLE

Borough Cemmed

h "’“‘r‘l
qatté

Town

How to cut your

ik Poll Tax bill —
facelift see centre page

GREEN SITE
TURNS GOLD

Project set to
make millions ;

AN AWARD-winning land project
which has turned an industrial waste-
land into a picturesque valley is set to

bring a multi-million pound pay-off
for families in Newcastle and
Kidsgrove.

The wingtull w b e desopes by 19
¢ actill, Kihgrone —

i, o pat 5t
e deseribued s 102

ik,

® GRCHENWOOD — nove o vaoum far
e

ey back’ e

u
mn:ll
oo A‘||‘|‘rrw|w|~hv‘

Sale completes
lndustry plan

the Nescusile paned

b
s+ i et B ey
o Bark

e e h B
lsyn

i
B e | Mo L:'-“‘-‘-*ﬂ“’* '“""

R 0T o | TR FRHE AT

1y il xR g | o iy Tha Courslibasspurd £17,008 o0

@ Turn 0 Pagm 3

t 4, Conservation

MARCH 93

NEWCASTLE UNDERLYME BOROUGH COUNCIL t
I W

ITH A DIFFERENCE

AR

THE NEWSPAPER

TACKLING
TRAFFIC
CHAOS IN
KIDSGROVE

-page 3

[ Qver 70 posts scrapped [ §1m cut in spending
to _reduce costs 1o avoid ‘capping’

MORE THAN 70 Council jobs have been axed
s 3 and cuts of nearly §1 million made by finance
VWHAT YOU WILL PAY ehiefs to redice the smount of Councll Tax
Borough residents will have to pay

All the posts have heen losi Urough early
retisement or voluary redundancy aod means
What Horough Councsl spending over the next 12
i wilbe 5670, K1 LESS than n this Brancial

o
As a reuill, the Bor
et %, . [y T BEGTON
AL
umder 8110 Ackderd Lo the moasires 10 avokd n"“
e i

cetral Goveriment.

Over £320,000 R

Peter's jubilee salute

YOUNG et Bcre o g o e 190" 0 frmiva

lave heeo o display o
T ot h A

o m-_-",*':'m‘l:‘; Jusdges will b ot

~ el o Appear i oan

it v o Wb sy b il

madern lile 8 e o Dctober 2310

24, hn e

ormmgh by @ an . A ex it
open arl COMPRHIBOn.  y will be bought by e
museum  far 1t
coletion
Eniry forns and
sampdhor dmsts s
veaslabile trom Bosousgh

+ i, soms e s wi | Counl eador s Ve
el M-, e e o our fronne service.”

E "
-
Parking fees frozen = =
CAK PARK charges 1 Rewcast e Mw mm ihis moght oy drive sbapgers | The st
Ers s

i =

» s e charas i th s et e e
:..nwn.m«d-mum-u. in_‘hzwmn__-_
i K streets e ausieirts.”

wreas
apest ol e 0 the mamrlmwn
Many of the Bor Borough during Whe Oetaber b

rl The decison means that prices will sented 1 the musensn.
hmlm.m.._mmnum...wmnr!m-?: crewmeners st | '
cenire vibs e charges B 0 2 s — Thory — A an |
iy po i o 0 24 s — 51 ncomes Futer il —
poge

be
e Counedls Bnaocis) problerms, bub iyt by

EASTER BIN SERVICE COLLECTION TIMES — See Page 3

ANCE/MANAGEMEN -

General Rate Fund (1988/89)
Expenditure £'000s

Housing Revenue Account (19688/89)
Expenditure £'000s

mraAnON & s &
NI Sowrnsik
1 £2,

16-8%

HOLSING BT
s s

= Spending well -

u..,.- et in Wasch

_ w1thm budget

e cumbicesd unt

s an repaying
Ty 1 ;

End of era as
chief retires

with 1h

Leaders’ tribute

dors o the cols
e et ilin 1o T Do

watun |Labguri, Mr Stave

prmprradd and Mie ee Moy d

e e B @ ALAN OWEN . insustrin g o prioiey.
i S o e

Expertise
o ol e Wit
My Gwen

SUAVIDWILL — @ EWC_ WETHERELL — @ KEITH MAYOH — @ BOB WANMSON — @ BN SIMCOCK . @ AN CONWAY — @ Sadky ONOWE
Troasumes frin Pionning. and Develop-  Mamapes ManunsSarviews Divanior, Housinn ‘amidl Dirnetor, Tuehniesl Divcior, Resrmation sve
e Dl el ety

THE REFORTER  Page |

HOLDS KEY TO KIDSGROVE TOWN CENT BOOST

LINK RO

o mﬁ%*‘"’“‘

[ serien ro|

Sl "

LIVERPOOL ROAD

THE RDAD AHEAD. . » suggwaied layout for the naw Bnk wad which will sllow Markel Streat 10 be gedestrianisa snd provids. suies off-straat posking.

PROPOSALS for 3 mew

“54E Paving way to safety

centre ar bring given ing
prscaity by Barough councit
lars

They are presig e couty
want

Cangestion

OFHER main proposals inckide:
© Roplacing e traiie e ot 1 L o Uvarpos e
wid The Ausnus wi

e Borgh plans imvoive
kg 5100000 s vowt

i all sreet parking ol e v
v o . Mdm-m.[mglhdl-wlmwund
then be chased to ralfc i thonn R
repurred ad
“The propusals e inshaded 18 e gy ta
iy takes ot
o kot
" oo ol g o safy Bvamass s Loiwss Ash Ruacl: Por
ma In Kickgrove und the Moo
nghays st et 050yt areas, I ha el -

iy ingrovirrts b s g Loy

it Bk

i talfc spwed: aceicht

Bridge oot 1t sanard of med
tags ane et tysing

nmnm-m. s unctions

Hogetully the Mot Toud
ket e gt Feopunas colaiied e during ek il g ol i o s
“3F Markot Stree! il g a2 (ralfic sy bave been bocked by 10 be maged shortly o Kisgeave — anry from the County Cauncil
i Kinsgrove  mornbers of Newcasie's Town Hall, Harriseahosd and sl pumos works which the Bor-
Commates fesdents will be e Newehapel, Cugh Con) o o o oy VO WAY THROUGH... the curmant conpestad scar
et i Marke Siroat

REFUSE COLLECTION

Smokeless zones
set to go ahead |Gl || ARRANGEMENTS

HEALTH Hiciuls. are to press.

anes thoughout 4 whan srew of the Borough. il e 4 EASTER 1993
hadd b0 e suspendind baat Sephember ms the Buough Councl et | g, .

P opporyliad g sl g o e e BANK HOLIDAYS

o i Deparieot o the Bvironcaemt i i e st o os b 4| G S The During Easter 1993 Bank Holidays collection
i :‘w—, o | e vtees | | will be nijusted ax follaws:—
o gmakn vew forihier 27in | omaged by the anit Normmal Collectian Day Revined Collection Day
3lllll okeless  zaned v »
st wd | Sty e e | | PSS A foms Saturday 10th April 1993

Bus pass charge

to remain at 85 [pEiaimma | MR | e iy we s
T
s i inre ae ow s | POM COSES Eaes Mot T T
e e Borough il mﬁ-unwn—w ahiecions e ok | SOROUCH o Tuesday 13 Apri 1993 Wednesday 14t April 1967
B ey e comian bt | o i toos by s | S e, e Wadnwsdeg Wi Aprd 1005 Triailey 1ih Agrd 1S
e e et 15 st oo | S 9 O Wi | Wy v i | | Ty 130 Aok 955 Py 60 Ay 183
= o oo 250 " ¥
i st s Sl e e e O R | i S PSR A St Suturday 1700 Apeil 1953
Collecti jin week
beglnning 199

UNDERSIVME
]




Reporter 1997

R NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL t FEB.'97

YOUR NEWSPAPER WORKING WITH VOU

Housing: Your Future

- special 4-page supplement

A
HAVEN OF HELP

CLEAN SWEEP

HOW TO CUT YOUR FUEL BILLS

BUDGET CUT
BY §1 MILLIO

Tax increase
limited to 8%

By TIM BEVINGTON
A MAJOR ecomomy drive by the
Barough Councll to slnsh its budget
by £1 million bas cushioned the rise
in this year's Council Tax bills.
owever, hills o the
up try an average of 8

o e e

Z

$150,000 facelift o wn mwo :.".."“.:“tf.'::‘!m*'"“

Farmod three of Newcastlo's main  supormarkst deveksmen

subnvays.
] The work 16 the sulveys vy antin Deputy Mayor and
n akes town's High Straar, Gaose S1reet and Tovwn Ward Councillar Moy
Friors Stroet has involved new  Glarke said: “Tho subiays are
iling, skic rusistant floaring, now a lot more brgiter and

SUDWAYS SAfEr Mottt i s s i st e

paid far 9ut of morey which the  them 10 gut inta fown

il yuars wgn”

KNUW YOUR LOCAL COUNCILLOR - SEE PAGE 11 FOR FULL DETAILS

FHE REPORTER Page 1

Recycling success
is on the cards

FAMILIES madia s

o stage cver 9,000

g SO
scies il gt

Chrtetusas
Canncit's depal

Vlllages celebrate
a §3m lease of life

Seven-year boost
for jobs and homes

PROJECTS ranglag from a new business park 1o smjsroved training are
being pranned for & group of urban villages i the Borough after the
area won 833 million in Government cash

Thisse schesmes will b curried) ot deiog 11 1651 12 mowtha of the seven
et Newsantle Wealern Urtsan Millages ©ommnity progranime
proi o better inthe

euth, Koo aod surrondiog areas.
0 o the cash wil s speen e Foe st 3w, bl s of tie
e sons sl be allacaied fter Hie year 2000, Alogedier, over 0 pub-
Frogramma Mansgas. [ic privas il veluinbary orguolsations are backing the programme and there
e -.mm Do

® Eric Kaluall, who has

ot s allo-

Bid e P
o :::;f; []PEN!]]G[]R mmmm

M iAn ptng ot b »um

- =T | Young citizens hold

st

Fatyentprofects | ejyic Question Time

emes: plusnied over e nest 12

MYETY ouely from _ Sovenl Gt ot uemion, T a0
+ guve sh the poisl «

Reporter 2002

“ NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL t MARCH 2002

WORKING WITH YOU

Youngs ters i PLUS - |

On target

Jor follow o Spotlight on
grants safety trail Borough |
-p3 -p12

services -pi &9 |

COUNTY NEWS - 4 page supplement Including Performance Plan

Blggest elections in Borough'’s histor hlstory

VOTERS FACING
DOUBLE POLL

DANCERS DISPLAY THEIR DRUGS WARNING .
YOTERS will go to the polls on May
2 o the biggest elections in the
Byear history of the Barongh

weuys of cammunicating concerns
whout dvigs,

sl w
o iin ot

“Evonts likn this are & good bpportis-
ity for mamibsaes of the pubic to came
wborng and find put firt-hand what
young pucpi feel aiwew drug issuss

Keep up to date by visiting us on www.newcastie-staffs.gov.uk

HE REFOUTER P

Commumty groups hit the bullseye D-Day
looms

s v | Over
The Newcastle £ Liabile

Tt s e Local
i Py A e

@ BULLEEVE NMsmbars of the Clayton Woodsmen Archery the community chest hund.

Investment helps maintain services

Borough tax rise
pegged to 5.5%

Al WHAT YOU WILL PAY

BAND COUNCIL TAX
A £628.83
B 13363
€ £838.04
[ 94324
B
¥
a

€1,152.85

€1.362.46
£1572.01
H £1,886.08

Flower beds
turning gold | === simnnses

Audioy, I8 73, Betiey, £17.42; Chapel and Hill
FLOWER BEDS in will bm & five-yanr nave bwon sat sside
for w2k L oggertmads, 15,15 Madeley, £8.47. M,

i EB0A. Sivrane, £5.50: Whnmers, 124D,
e @ FOR further help swe page 11 o1 tol. 715600,

vl b Filect it
uolden bicams this
st mark the
S0tk wnbrorsery of
the Ousena 1oign  sin gaeden, nesy play
ol 10 mank the squipma and davel-
‘s antry im0 aping the (ase gor
this yo's Beitain in  dan

ciusign as part of &
spocial Breugh
Canmell campaign

Local comprtt e
s vasr i manas | Referendum’s key question

s firs: referen

Bioom armpatitian
Ditfarert types of Rasket

marigolds snd bege Thara will ba new

i wil Inarusa hanging bushet tress

strougly in Roral dis in Kig Stras,
plays i e Qusen's xu.gm. and the
Garriean and on the laoking for
Pyecash, whie sl
gohdon weadlands  provide a el car-
" et b feature by 5t
Gl Chureh,
Newicasthe, nesi (he
a3

Toen Howwerbeshs,
ane in Kidsgrove wd  in Blaow worling
Bloom’ cempaign  ane in Neweastie group




007

OUR NEWSPAPER

Pupils
dig in
and go

Enjoy a
game of
bowls.
FREE

Sex Page | i

green

Inside

Sen Page §

RACE IS
ON FOR
SPORTS

VILLAG

PARTNERS
excitiog for
new sports village in

v Planning under way for

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

twww newcastle-staffs, gov.uk

YOUR COMMUNITY

Council
service
with a
smile

See Page &

Reporter 2007

Bygones
prizes
up for
grabs

pabie | S

E

Neweamte wim e state-of-the-art complex
;

vide facilities to equal tm work it
located clse-

phase of the o
the vegion

byt spor
T
i o 1t ity
deliver o aponts silage

oo
Community

o A

newcast
daucialissRann LanLls
slatisgsmah

YOUNG bashotbal player Thomes Whalley coult fve & rasly big future

i fromt of hirm,

The teenagar from Wolstanton is siready performing in. the Nationst
Lusgue with Manchester Magic

And I Ive cant
hi big tima wwith tha llp

of Neweustle Sports Council
o find out rre turn 1o Page 13,

aress, Thomas could be hasding nte

THE ALPORTER

Freedom
honour

Newiastia Oiviaton
of Staffordshie 51
Jukn Ambulanee wor
prasamter with the
Frosdom  of  the
Boraugh By fermer
Mayor Bill Sinntt in

duties

e donen o

offics  warlier  hin

month

Pabiin Meabon 51
i

Projects revealed to create empl_oyment

S$1m is just the [
job for new jobs

MORE THAN §1 mitlion las
plecigedt by the Busgh Co

230 s e e et il
L Wit

Invubes ¢
[ -

e
prceeiche 85 fon
Hassoll dtrvel al «

| BRCHENWOOD PARK. KIDSGROVE

BRADWELL PARK, CHESTERTON PARK,

CLOUGH HALL PARK. KIDSGROVE

SUVERDALE PARK. WESTLANDS PARK

VDL STANTON PARK. OUEEN ELIZABETH PARK. NEWCASTLE

NFWCASTIE
PR

i have 1o do is hand i the voucher be

BEA

TING BAD
BEHAVIOUR ...

o

The

Resi
over their
priorities

COUNCIL Taxpayers have put boough coun
forward their ideas on how the

nest o financial
A ew repart

borough council can save £2.5 iy i
million over the next two years, 35 3 Midium Tom Hrancial Suate
IMTFS) waggest urhes suvings and <iicien

e will e wived fon anotier theee vears
tha

The docuiment pedicts add
« i 20

after and 4 further 657000 o J017/1K,
Thaks will b om top

W5116: sunotiver

tinancal resureos

More than 600 car g 10 ks thelr  Ieen savesd by the o
w il Mike Stubbs, Cabine
finance and budget managen

vl by e Ciovernment s kg B

Repc

MNevember 2012

€y

o

% b el with izt Wit
1 pictare it is impal-
with the
st s why we can
et comsulation: exertise

“We il listea 51wt ponph have sais, 1is
e 10wl partisens and other ey graaps say,
0 e slhape obi DudEEn With e necessary

wat we are gweare of the |
wneder franclally and will work very hand t
ses i1 the boe-
il T bills

Ry —

gk gt o iy €

b

ents speak out

the barough counei] which spells ot its pr
o and how 1 aieus b ..\mm chemn.

This inchies o e pr
cuupezative councll deliv
community-diven servic

m.u. oo

h "Part ot
il uumm 1o, and
nahl

I3 kgl T this fepiey
shoves how we are putting that o prax
With Teponts o NS <onaiitation o ke
s which lmpact on peoies lives
hangs w0 Councd T I allinca,

dog ontu) oedem and ooty

+

REPORTER Page 5

Up and | away for charity

A BALLOON race Cllr. Diavidl Bocket sntered the Back inte his chos

-k sty e o

130 werthy i o u.-
Mayor Is raising fun
Hor in his civic yoar

s balloon

Morth
ahs n 100th e B gnilg gain an

Uncolnsbire, o 3 ta fund
win the race.

apprentic
g from the estia Fourdotion

ire Housing's regeneration
charlty that tupports sppren
ticaships and IHelong kearning.

win-
g prize
100 which

Public helplng to
shape the future

ST HADCES Wit MR WAL Consuitatons
e ERY T YA s
i a Site Allocations and

4.

PLANNING officers are reviewing
a mountain of information gath
ered during the first stages of 4
programme which will ultimate-
Iy help decide how Newcastle.
under-Lyme should develop sver
the next 14 years.
A comsublation ext
ul & serie

Town and Country Gas Ltd
ta 01782 562622

at the ‘issass and Cptons’ sage
ation ot 1o che Lyme Park, Newcastle aff

1 assure them we are loaking cane-
sl
e ;i X \\ inter Warmers

m”m.u.ux.x.u

dence and etablithed local aod narional g v ne Sile
et mae sure our nest sl of off any new boiler inst

tow the Botaugls could be t January 2(
1t wway 1o create @ mowe d

iy pich el
bt publicly
i - 14 wped o ok
I emplosment in d

BLIGATI

Newe s e
will atso) tdentify aseas mmn uald be
il safeguarded b '

Ihe botucigh couricll 1o falk
15 0 cAtier interssted puroes ahout
fi secific aneas of land,

That will be atothe v

o bt wiemphecxaidey)

opportunity ta «H
T tnventremt which has « Full Ele

bishment of the Knution
Tervaces, Millrite Extra-
ware, the redeve

of Charter Road and
recrsational facilicies at
The Wamey,

by
e mny el i
reduveloper




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda Item 5

FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT TO END OF QUARTER
FOUR (March) 2013

Submitted by: Head of Finance and Head of Business Improvement &
Partnerships

Portfolio: Communications, Transformation & Partnerships; Finance
and Budget Management

Wards Affected: All

Purpose
To provide Transformation and Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee with the
Performance Review for the 2012/13 Fourth Quarter (January-March).

Recommendations

(a) That Members note the contents of the report and recommend that the
Council continues to monitor and scrutinise performance alongside
finances.

(b) That Members note that the appendix is a new style of performance
report to be further developed for 2013-14 as detailed in line with the
Performance Management Framework Review and the Council Plan
2013-14 to 2015-16.

(c) That Members feedback their views and comments to members of
Cabinet prior to the May meeting where this appendix will also appear
in the Financial & Performance Management report.

Reasons
These monitoring reports provide information about the corporate performance of
individual council services.

1. Background, issues and options

1.1 This report provides Members with a detailed update on how the Council has
performed during the fourth quarter of 2012/13 by presenting performance data
set in a financial context.

1.2 The Council approved a General Fund Revenue Budget of £14,260,980 on 22
February 2012. The actual position compared to this budget is continuously
monitored by managers in order to detect any significant variances of expenditure
or income from the approved amounts contained in the budget. Regular reports
are made available to members by the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Budget
Management informing them of the current position, highlighting any significant
factors giving rise to variances.

1.3 A Capital Programme totalling £18,480,100, covering the two years 2011/12 to
2012/13, was approved at the same Council meeting. Of this total, £4,457,200
was estimated to be spent in 2012/13.

1.4 This report also provides detailed analysis of performance in the fourth quarter,
focusing on key performance indicators.

1.5 A summary of the overall picture is presented in section 5 of this report.
Performance is progressing well, with the majority of targets currently met.

Page 15



2.1

2.2

2.3

4.1

4.2

5.1

52

5.3

54

Page 16

Revenue Budget Position

The outturn is not yet available because, although the 2012/13 accounts now
include all the payments that have actually been made and all of the cash actually
received up to and including 31 March 2013, there are still a number of
adjustments and accounting entries which remain to be made in order to
complete the year’s accounts. These adjustments will be finalised over the next
few weeks.

Current indications are that the final revenue budget outturn will be in line with the
approved budget.

The Square, High Street, Newcastle is let to Gatedale Limited (in liquidation) on a
125 year lease which commenced in 1998. Since July 2001 the tenant has been
paying £100,000 per annum to the Council. The rent review provisions within the
lease provide that as from September 2005 a minimum of £100,000 per annum is
to be paid to the Council and dependant on the income and expenditure in
respect of the car park, shopping mall and cinema an extra payment may be
payable.

Following prolonged negotiations with the LPA Receiver appointed to act for
Gatedale’s creditors, your Officers have provisionally agreed that an additional
sum of £393,278 is to be paid to the Council for the period 2005 to 2012 (end of).

Investment Counterparties

Investment counterparties with whom money is invested, as at 31 March 2013 are
as follows (with the parent company shown in brackets, where applicable):

Halifax Bank of Scotland (Lloyds Banking Group)
Heritable Bank (Landsbanki)
Nationwide Building Society

With regard to the Council’s frozen investment in Heritable Bank, the total amount
repaid now amounts to some £1,937,728, which is around 77% of the total that
was frozen. The Administrators current prediction is that 86-90% of the
£2,500,000 invested will be repaid.

Performance

The Corporate Performance (‘dashboard’) report is reported in a new format
attached as Appendix ***.

The information is presented in four sections against each priority.

There are two sets of symbols to show improvement and achievement :

e One set of symbols (arrows), show whether performance has improved or
worsened since the last time each indicator was reported

e Second set of symbols (smiley faces), show whether performance is currently

on target or not.

An overall status of performance against each priority is also stated.



5.5 The intention is to further develop the format of performance reports ensuring
suitability and clear communication of progress with outcomes for members and
officers of the council.

5.6 In the appendix there are measures detailing progress against our priorities and
outcomes and the number of quarterly indicators is 27.

5.7 The appendix comments on individual indicators where they raise an issue or
where either a target has been met, or the direction of travel is not positive.

5.8 The proportion of indicators which have met their targets, based on data at the
time of compiling this report, was almost 74%.

5.9 Positive performance can be seen in a range of services although it must be
borne in mind that the results later in the year can be different and that some
services have seasonal factors.

5.10 There are a small number of areas listed in this report which are not on target,
though none causes concern at present. In all cases, the management of the
service is aware of the issues and are taking steps to deal with the situation.
Further updates will be provided for Members in future reports.

6. Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strategy and Corporate
Priorities

6.1 All of these indicators link to corporate priorities.
7. Legal and Statutory Implications

7.1 The Council has a duty to set targets for performance of a range of functions and
needs to monitor these closely.

8. Equality Impact Implications
8.1 There are no differential equality issues.
9. Financial and Resource Implications

9.1 Any positive variance for the full year on the General Fund Revenue Account will
enable that amount to be transferred to the Budget Support Fund and will be
available in future years for use as the Council considers appropriate.
Conversely, if there is an adverse variance, the amount required to cover this will
have to be met from the Budget Support Fund.

10. Major Risks

10.1 The current economic situation represents the greatest risk to the revenue budget,
particularly with regard to the impact it may have upon income receivable in
relation to services where customers may chose whether or not to use Council
facilities, such as car parking and other areas directly affected by the economic
downturn, such as land charges and planning applications. The situation will be
monitored through the normal budget monitoring procedures.

10.2 The capital programme will require regular monitoring to identify any projects
which are falling behind their planned completion dates. This will be carried out
by the Capital Programme Review Group, which meets on a monthly basis
together with quarterly reports to Cabinet.

Page 17



10.1 The above represents a high level view of risk. There are detailed risk registers
available if members wish to see them.
11. List of Appendices
Corporate Performance (‘dashboard’) report is attached as Appendix
12. Background Papers
Working papers held by officers responsible for calculating indicators.
13. Management sign off
Each of the designated boxes need to be signed off and dated before
going to Executive Director/Corporate Service Manager for sign off.

Signed Dated

Financial
Implications
Discussed and
Agreed

Risk Implications
Discussed and
Agreed

Legal Implications
Discussed and
Agreed

H.R. Implications
Discussed and
Agreed

ICT Implications
Discussed and
Agreed

Report Agreed by:
Executive Director/
Head of Service

Page 18



Newcastle Borough Council — Qtr 4 Performance Report 2012-13

This corporate quarterly report is a collection of our key performance indicators and the
tables below provide a summary of performance to date.

Key to the symbols used in this report

This set of symbols show whether performance has improved or worsened since last time
each indicator was reported:

ﬁ Performance has improved

<:> Performance has stayed the same
ﬁ Performance has worsened
?

Comparison to last time is not possible at the moment

This set of symbols show whether performance is currently on target or not.

Achieving target

Just short of target but plans are in place to overcome these problems

Significantly missing target and so may not achieve its goals

~® 0 6

Either the performance or the target is missing at the moment

There is a tabled section for each of our four priorities containing indicators measuring our
achievement in that area.

Page 19



Priority 1

- A clean, safe and sustainable borough

e Our streets and open spaces environment will have reduced
will be clean, clear and tidy: e Town centres across the
e Levels of safety will have borough will be sustainable
improved, along with standards and safe:
of public health: e Working in partnership to
e Vulnerable citizens and victims support victims of anti-social
of crime will be provided with behaviour, crime and
high quality support: domestic violence:
e The negative impact that the e Focus with partners on
Council, residents and local empowering local people
businesses have on the communities.
Ref Indicator Qtr 4 Result Qtr 4 How have Target
Target we Achieved?
performed?
Number of food
11 establishments which are 91 85 @
) broadly compliant with good
hygiene law
The majority of Food business operators are complying well with legal requiraments. This has
been assisted by the launch of the national food hygiene rating scheme a e publication of the
premises rating score.
680
1.2 | Violence with injury (cumulative N/A ?
total)
Violence with injury incidents have reduced by 7.9 % compared with the year to date figure of 738
in 2011-12.
3831
1.3 | Anti-social Behaviour (cumulative N/A ?
total)
The number of incidents of ASB has reduced by 5.7% compared with the year to date figure of
4063 in 2011-12. The number of incidents in Qtr 4 (863) is slightly higher than the number
recorded in Qtr 3 (802).
773 ﬁ
1.4 | Serious acquisitive crime (cumulative N/A ?
total)
The result for the Serious Acquisitive Crime indicator is down on the result of the previous year by
5.3% compared to the year to date figure of 813 in 2011-12.
% of investment portfolio 7.8 12
1.5 (NBC owned) which is vacant. @
The percentage for this quarter is within target and given the current economic climate is a
positive result. 14 out of 179 properties are vacant of these 6 are retail units within the Town
Centre which has been particularly badly affected by the recession. A furth¢=<4 properties require
substantial work prior to a tenant taking occupation of the property we are ﬁrently seeking
funding to enable works to take place.
Page 20




Ref

Indicator Qtr 4 Qtr 4 Target | How have Target
Result we Achieved?
performed?

1.6

Levels of street and
environment cleanliness

a) litter 15 9% ﬂ

0,
b) detritus 15.02 9% ﬂ

c) graffiti 117 3% ﬁ

e ®0®

d) fly-posting 0 1% <:>

Sites for the surveys are randomly selected from a list of 10 land classifications (e.g. retail and
commercial, housing, industry, highways, recreation) and include both land for which the
Council is responsible, and land in private/other ownership for which the Council does not have
street cleansing responsibility. The sites change for each tranche of surveys to ensure that a
true picture across the spectrum is reflected. The results in this third survey for litter and detritus
have deteriorated slightly in this last quarter; however the overall results for the 2012-13 are
12.5% and 11.67% respectively. It should be noted that for the year 87.5% of sites surveyed
are achieving the acceptable standard for litter levels and 88.33% of sites for detritus. The other
2 categories are broadly on or exceeding target.

Analysis of the results has identified where resources and realignment of the service needs to
take place to improve levels of street and environment cleanliness in the surveyed areas. In the
case of litter, resources need to be targeted towards retail and commercial areas, high
obstruction housing, highways and recreation areas. In the case of detritus, resources need to
be targeted towards high obstruction housing, industry and warehousing and highways. These
areas include significant areas of land for which the Council does not have direct street
cleansing responsibilities, and in these cases the Council will adopt an education and
enforcement approach to seek to encourage landowners to improve the standard.

How the indicator is collected: The results for this indicator are obtained from three surveys
undertaken in quarters 2, 3 & 4 of 2012-13. The score is expressed as a percentage of the total
number of sites surveyed which fall below the "acceptable" standard. The results of the surveys
are analysed and the findings used to target the worst performing areas.

1.7

The amount of residual
household waste per 104.08kgs 112.5kgs ﬁ @
household

Performance better than expected, residual waste levels continue to drop. End of year total is
423.92kg’s per household.

1.8

Percentage of household
waste sent for reuse, 44.45% 52% ﬂ @
recycling and composting

Quarter 4 performance lower than target mainly due to poor weather conditions with very little
garden waste being collected particualy during March when normally yields are high as the
growing season starts in earnest. However the end of year target has only missed narrowly with
an outturn of 51.82% against the target of 52%.

1.9

Measure missed bin ﬁ
collections on all our routes 35.48 100

The number of missed bins for Qtr 4 is well within target. The overall trend on the year shows a
continued improvement with a cumulative result of 40.01 (2011/12 result was 45.90).

Page 21




Priority 2 — A borough of opportunity

o Levels of worklessness will have ¢ Housing will be available and
reduced: accessible to meet a range of diverse
needs
e Local people will be able to access « Key parts of the borough will have
opportunities for personal been regenerated and there will have
development and growth been overall economic growth
Ref Indicator Qtr 4 Qtr4 | How have | 2012/13 Target
Result | Target we Target | Achieved
performed? ?
2.1 | Number of cases where positive
action was successful in
preventing homelessness (from 1 125 ﬂ 500 @
the P1E)
The NHA team have worked well again with users this quarter, and although the service is
below the quarterly target, the overall figure for 2012/13 is 554 exceeding the annual target.
2.2 | Continued engagement with the
Family Employment Initiative 175 135 ﬁ 540 @
(FEI)
The cumulative result at Q4 is 585 people engaged against a target of 540 for the year to
date. The details of engagement are as follows: Engagement target 27 per month (Qtr 4,
142 inc 5 into voluntary work) Training target 9 per month (Qtr 4, 23), Employment target 9
per month (Qtr 4, 10). Q4 is just under target mainly due to funding cuts at CRT and less
staff working at the FEI)
2.3a | NI 157a Percentage of Major
Planning Applications 75 ﬂ
determined within time 66.7 (60) 75 (60) @
(cumulative)
This indicator and the next two are cumulative indicators. The performance for major
applications in 2012/13 has not met the local target with 12 out of the 18 decisions which
count towards this indicator made being within 13 weeks, however performance still exceeds
the national target by 6.7%. Performance is being closely monitored and all possible steps
taken to achieve decisions within 13 weeks, without putting the Council at risk of challenge
and complaint from applicants.
2.3b | NI 157b Percentage of Minor
Planning Applications 85
determined within time 88 (65) ﬂ 85 (65) @
(cumulative)
The performance for minor applications has exceeded both the local and national targets by
3% and 23% respectively.
2.3c | NI 157¢c Percentage of Other
Planning Applications 95 <:>
determined within time 92.8 (80) 95 (80) @
(cumulative)
For the category of “other,” the performance for this quarter was marginally below the
locally set target but exceeded the government target of 80% by 12.8% and so is still
performing well. For the sake of clarity the national performance targets set by government
have been shown in brackets against our locally set targets.
Page 22



Priority 3

A healthy and active community

People who live work, visit or

study in the borough will
have access to high quality

facilities

Levels of cultural activity and

participation in the arts will

have increased

There will be a range of
healthy lifestyle choices,
resulting in an increase in
participation in sport and

physical activity

Local people will be more
able to work together to

solve local problems
Council services will be

influenced by resident

engagement, enabling local

communities to shape

services which directly affect

their lives

(cumulative)

Ref Indicator Qtr 4 Qtr 4 How have we | 2012/13 Target
result target performed? Target | Achieved?

Number of people
accessing leisure ﬁ

3.1 | and recreational 579,575 | 570,000 570,000 @
facilities
(cumulative)
The figures for usage of leisure facilities in the borough has increased this quarter with a total
of 166,157 users recorded. The Council operates two leisure facilities: Kidsgrove Sports
Centre and Jubilee2.
Number of people

32 | Visiting the 51,634 | 63,000 iy 63,000 @
museum

Many visits to the museum are combined with visits to the park and therefore the poor
weather, particularly the wet summer, had an adverse effect on numbers coming through the
doors. The service had also experienced an initial drop in schools visits as schools focussed
on the Olympics and the Jubilee in 2012 and school budgets again were tightened. We have
worked hard to re-establish the schools programme at the museum, initially by sending our
education staff into schools. By proving our relevance to the curriculum we are now seeing
school visits increase again to near previous numbers. Figures from museums across the
country are showed a downward trend of up to 20% in 2012 - a museum we use to
benchmark with reports a drop in numbers of 22%, reasons citied being the weather and the
effect of the Olympics. The figure here represents an 8% decrease. The programme of events
and activities on offer also continues to adapt to develop existing and new audiences with
April 2013 showing an increase of 500 visitors compared with the whole month of April 2012.

Page 23




Priority 4

Becoming a Co-operative Council delivering high quality, community-
driven services

¢ The Council will have increased ¢ High performing services will
the capacity and skills of its be provided for all residents
workforce and customers
. . . e The Council will be an open,
e Councillors will be community honest and transparent
champions and powerful organisation undertaking
community advocates regular consultation with its
residents and listens to their

e The Council will have delivered

further efficiencies views
Ref Indicator Qtr 4 Qtr 4 How have | 2012/13 Target
result target we Target | Achieved?
performed?

Average number of
days lost, per (?6?16 c:zﬁ‘
4.1 | employee, to the 5.089days: 6.90 ﬂ 6.9 @
Council through short term

sickness (cumulative) | 2,98 days)

The indicator has performed well previously but has been off in 2012/13 due largely to the
effect of a number of long term sickness cases. In 2011/12 the annual figure for long term
sickness was 3.74 days and short term sickness was 2.99 days. All sickness absence is
continuing to be pro-actively managed with HR support and has seen a significant increase in
the number of Occupational Health referrals and also the number of employees being
referred for counselling support where relevant. A review of both the Attendance
Management and Capability Procedures is scheduled in 2013/14.

Percentage of
4.2 | invoices paid on

. b 97.85 97 ﬁ 97 @
time(within 30 days)

Performance continues to be above target

% projected variance

4.3 | against full year Not No 2 No 2
council budget available | variance . variance .

The outturn figure will not be available until the final accounting entries have been made and
the accounts have been closed.

% requests resolved

4.4 | at first point of 96.8 75 ﬁ 75 @

contact

Performance continues to be well above target and telephone contact has increased by 10%
through the addition of some leisure services calls. The target will be reviewed in line with
best practice.

Ref Indicator Qtr 4 Qtr 4 How have | 2012/13 Target
result target we Target | Achieved?
performed?
Page 24



4.5

% Unmet demand
(number of calls not
answered as a % of

T

. 7 10 10 @
total call handling
volume)
Performance is above target, but is likely to be impacted on in Q1 due to the
implementation of the replacement Customer Relationship Management (CRM)
system.
Percentage of
46 Council Tax
" | Collected 97.3 97.5 ﬁ 97.5 @
(Cumulative)
Performance achieved against what is still a difficult national economic situation.
Percentage of
4.7 | NNDR collected 97.5 96 ﬁ 96 @
Performance achieved against what is still a difficult national economic situation.
Time taken to
process Housing
4.8 | Benefit/Council Tax 9.32 10 ﬁ 10 days @

new claims and
change events

Target processing times achieved.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

Agenda Item 6

BUDGET PREPARATION, SCRUTINY AND APPROVAL PROCESS 2014/15

Submitted by: Head of Finance
Portfolio: Finance and Budget Management
Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

To outline the process whereby the 2014/15 budget will be prepared, scrutinised and approved.

Recommendation

(a) That members note the content of the report.
Reasons

To keep members informed with regard to the process which will be followed in compiling the
2014/15 budget.

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

Background and Issues

Initial work on the preparation of the 2014/15 budget has been underway for sometime.
In particular, the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is being updated and service
managers, in conjunction with relevant Cabinet Portfolio Holders, are continuing to work
on identifying efficiencies and other savings.

The background against which the budget is being compiled continues to be
challenging, with further reductions in central government grant support at the same
time as many costs are increasing, plus the economic recession continues to affect
income.

The Council Plan was approved by Full Council on 24 April 2013. In order to reflect the
Council Plan and the priorities expressed in it, it may be necessary to refocus some
areas of the budget so that resources are put into these priority areas, with others which
do not contribute as strongly to the achievement of priority outcomes seeing a reduction
in resources allocated to them.

There is also a commitment by the Cabinet to consult widely upon budget proposals,
including providing the opportunity for stakeholders to give their views concerning
options being considered both to refocus on priority areas and to achieve savings to
balance the budget.

QOutline of the Process

A Budget Review Group was established to oversee the preparation of the current
2013/14 budget, chaired by the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance and Budget
Management. The Council Leader and the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, Planning
and Town Centres are group members, together with the Chief Executive and Executive
Director of Resources and Support Services and other appropriate finance and
corporate support officers. The remit of the group is to oversee all aspects of the budget
process, including service review and challenge, longer term planning, development of
budget options, agreeing consultation arrangements and consideration of feedback and
seeking to deliver service models that drive improvement to front-line services whilst

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED Page 27



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

offering value for money. The Group continues to meet and will perform a similar role in
relation to the 2014/15 budget preparation process.

2.2 The Group carried out an exercise to determine the relative priorities of services, based
on their fit with the priorities contained in the draft Council Plan. The Group will revisit
this exercise early in the process of compiling the 2014/15 budget to ensure consistency
with the approved Plan.

2.3 A comprehensive service challenge process was conducted, by the Budget Review
Group, as part of the preparation of the 2013/14 budget with the participation of Cabinet
Portfolio Holders and Heads of Service. All services were potentially subject to
challenge but the process particularly concentrated on those with the potential to deliver
significant improvements in the priority areas. Heads of Service put forward options for
improved service delivery and efficiency savings together with suggestions for “invest to
save” proposals whereby continuing increased efficiency can be obtained in return for a
proportionally modest initial outlay. Performance and benchmarking data, where
available, was provided and considered for each service. The opportunity was also
taken to consider savings which may be made in cross-cutting areas, such as
procurement. The Budget Review Group will revisit and build upon these reviews in
relation to the 2014/15 budget.

2.4 A range of budget options, consistent with the Council Plan, will be determined by the
Budget Review Group, following the identification and analysis of potential efficiency
and other savings either via a service challenge process or an informal process carried
out by service managers. Account will also be taken of the results of the service
prioritisation exercise. These options will form the basis for the formulation of a range of
budget options, consistent with the draft revised Council Plan which can then be subject
to consultation.

2.5 A consultation process will be undertaken, seeking to gain views through a variety of
means, both by face to face contact and electronically, from a broad range of
stakeholders. The consultation will incorporate the Council Plan, to which the budget is
closely linked, as well as the budget options put forward. Last year’s process in respect
of the 2013/14 budget consisted of an extensive public consultation exercise, beginning
with a special budget edition of the “Reporter’, which invited readers to complete a brief
questionnaire setting out their views concerning options for the 2013/14 budget. There
were also pages within the Council’s website devoted to budget consultation, including
an online version of the questionnaire. Following on from this, a number of meetings
were held at various locations across the Borough, giving opportunities for residents to
contribute their views. In addition, Cabinet members and officers were available on a
number of days, situated in gazebos in the town centres, to answer questions
concerning the 2013/14 budget and to receive the views of the public. The Council’s e-
Panel was also consulted. It is expected that similar means of consultation will be
employed in relation to the 2014/15 budget. The exact form of consultation will be
agreed by the Budget Review Group during the summer with the exercise commencing
in late summer/early autumn, allowing time for the results to be available for
consideration when compiling the draft budget.

2.6 Members will be an important element in the scrutiny process, particularly through this
committee but also as a whole. Budget documents, including the draft budget book, will
be available to all members so that they are able to carry out an informed examination
of the budget and its contents and thereby can provide feedback for consideration by
your committee and the Cabinet when it finalises the budget for recommendation to Full
Council on 26 February 2014. A special event styled “scrutiny café”, facilitated by the
Chair of this Committee, was held on 17 January 2013, to which all members were

Page Z@ssification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

2.7

2.8

2.9

3.1

invited. This took the form of a workshop, attended by Cabinet members and
appropriate officers, where members were able to discuss and raise issues regarding
the draft 2013/14 budget to be subsequently considered by the Cabinet. It is intended to
repeat this event in January 2014 to enable a similar exchange of information to take
place.

The Committee will have a number of opportunities to scrutinise the budget proposals
and to feedback views to Cabinet, beginning with consideration of the draft MTFS,
including the assumptions made therein about price and other changes affecting
2014/15 and later years. The MTFS will identify the “gap” between projected net spend
and the resources available over the five year period commencing in 2014/15 and put
forward options for closing the “gap” for each of the years 2014/15 and 2015/16. At this
meeting you will also be updated regarding the proposed process of public budget
consultation. The results of the public consultation process will be considered by your
committee. This occurred last year via a special meeting on 10 December. Whether a
special meeting will be desirable this year will depend on the progress made in
compiling the consultation results or whether these are available in time to fit in with one
of the scheduled meetings. At the meeting on 22 January 2014 feedback from the
scrutiny café will be considered, together with the Cabinet’'s budget proposals approved
by it on 15 January.

To assist members in their review of the budget, training sessions will be arranged for
members, in September, covering local authority finance generally, the budget process
and an explanation of the contents of the budget.

The Budget Review Group will also consider the capital programme for 2014/15 and
beyond and the resources which may be available to finance it. There will be the
opportunity for members to review and comment on this during the scrutiny process
outlined above.

Timetable

The timetable as regards member involvement and the completion of key stages in the
process is set out in the table below.

Event Body Affected Date
Budget and local authority finance training All members | 5 September
Agree budget options after identification of Budget September
Efficiency Savings/Service Challenge Process Review Group
Consideration of proposed consultation process Cabinet (no 17 July
TROSC
meeting
scheduled in
July)
Public Consultation Stakeholders | October/
November
Consideration of MTFS Cabinet 16 October
Consideration of MTFS TROSC 6 November
Review of consultation feedback and initial budget | TROSC Early
strategy and savings options December
(special

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED Page 29



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

meeting?)
Review of consultation feedback (Chair of TROSC | Cabinet 11 December
to give verbal feedback at the Cabinet meeting)
Scrutiny Café All members 14 January
Draft Budget proposals including options approved Cabinet 15 January
Scrutiny of draft budget TROSC 22 January
Budget proposals recommended for approval by Full | Cabinet 5 February
Council
Full Council to approve Budget Full Council 26 February

Note: TROSC = Transformation & Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Page Bssification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED



1.1

1.2

1.3

2.

Agenda ltem 7

Constitution Working Party
Briefing Note to Transformation and Resources OSC
20 May 2013

Background

The Constitution is the set of rules that describe and constrain how the Council operates,
how its decisions are made and the procedures to be followed.

On 24 April 2013, Council resolved to adopt amendments to the Constitution recommended
by the Working Group and that the Group should carry out a continued review of the

Constitution.

The approach taken by the Working Group continues to be to:

(i) Remove obvious duplications;
(ii) Identify contradictions and remove the parts that do not accord with local practice or
law;

(iii) Remove obsolete, inaccurate or unnecessary references to law or processes;

(iv) Change dates and time specific items;

(v) Use the up to date officer and committee structures and be clear about, for example,
job titles;

(vi) Simplify wording and improve the indexing;

(vii)  To use flowcharts rather than narrative where appropriate;

(viii)  Take best practice from a number of other Constitutions.

Current Issues Under Consideration

Substitute Members

2.1

2.2

2.3

Council has approved in principal the use of substitutes and asked the Constitution Review
Working Group to continue their work. Members were invited to contact the Working Group
with their thoughts on this matter.

Many local authorities operate a substitute system, which provides for the attendance at a
committee or sub-committee meeting of a substitute Member whenever a regularly
appointed Member cannot attend. It is helpful to ensure a quorum and political balance
which in turn avoids decisions which are liable to be overturned or against the wishes of the
majority. On the other hand, it is against the general principle of fixed membership and
Members may have limited knowledge of the work of the particular committee.

The Constitution Review Working Group have considered different ways of allowing
substitutes but are not yet ready to bring forward a full recommendation. ldeas under
consideration currently include:

(1) Substitutes could be provided for by authorising an officer to make changes to the
standing appointments of committees and sub-committees on the instruction of the
political groups. It would be recommended that at least 24 hours notice be given by
the Group to allow the papers to be sent to the substitute in time for them to be read.

(i) Alternatively, the Council could appoint substitutes for each committee or
sub-committee, probably at the same time as it appoints the regular Members.

1 Page 31



These substitutes could build up knowledge and this then would allow for the
maintenance of an accurate committee membership register. If substitutes were to be
allowed, it would be recommended that 24 hours notice be given by the Group to
ensure that papers are received (as above), and to avoid confusion with the original
Member who would not then be eligible to attend that meeting as a Member.

(iii) Any Substitutes provision would not be allowed for any Committee Chairs and Vice-
Chairs.

(iv) Substitutes for Regulatory Committees would be required to undergo specific training
before carrying out their substitute roles.

(v) Substitutes would not be allowed for Full Council for obvious reasons.

Cabinet Panels

24 The Constitution Review Working Group has explored the introduction of Cabinet Panels to
understand how they are covered by the Constitution. Council agreed that the Constitution
Review Working Group continue to review the requirement for a distinct section within the
Constitution covering the role and work of Cabinet Panels.

Scrutiny Arrangements

25 The Constitution Review Working Group is exploring the role of Health Scrutiny, as the
very important work that this committee undertakes is not recognised in the Constitution
alongside the other Overview and Scrutiny Committees. Appendix 10 of the Constitution will
be reviewed in totality, as there has been no review since the current scrutiny arrangements
were first introduced in 2007.

Clir Elizabeth Shenton
Chair, Constitution Working Party

Page 32 2



Agenda Item 8

THE MODERNISATION OF THE POST OFFICE NETWORK

Submitted by: Executive Director — Resources and Support
Services
Portfolio: Communications, Transformation and Partnerships

|/ Stronger and Active Neighbourhoods

Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

To review the enclosed joint report entitled “The Local Authority and Post
Office Ltd. Pathfinder Programme” — An Evaluation of Strategic Engagement”
recently issued by the Local Government Association, Department of
Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) and the Post Office Ltd.

Decision Required

Does the committee wish a scrutiny brief to be produced and included
as part of their future work plan?

1. Background

1.1 At its meeting on 19 November 2012, the committee received a
presentation from Richard Lynds, Senior Stakeholder Manager for the
Post Office in order to consider the modernisation of the Post Office
network, in particular the possibility of partnership working, as a
potential new scrutiny topic for the committee.

1.2 To remind members of the discussion that took place, the minutes of
the meeting were:

The modernisation programme would create two types of branches:
larger main branches and smaller local models. There would be no
branch closures and it was hoped the number of branches would
increase as they became more profitable. Half of the Borough’s
branches would be modernised, with any changes communicated to
the Council in advance. Two branches within the Borough had
indicated that they wished to be part of the modernisation programme
and it was expected that in the next twelve months another ten would
be added to them. It was requested that the contact details for all
Parish Councils within the Borough be provided to Richard Lynds to
allow him to pass communications to them.

The Post Office was looking at how they could work with local
government and in the last twelve months had worked with 25
pathfinder councils. They had a good I.T. platform and infrastructure
that could work well with both local authority and customer systems. A
tender from the Post Office to a Council would depend on the services
required by the Council, and could be a single item tender or a
framework agreement. Some services could be implemented

Page 33



Page 34

1.3

2.1

2.2

immediately, whereas others could be developed. In Birmingham, a
customer facing computer room had been installed in a Post Office to
enable public access to the Council’s website and online forms.
Members highlighted that some members of the public did not have
internet access. The Post Office wished to help the eight million
people in the country who were not online, and were encouraging and
assisting people to do so.

Members questioned how new services would be incorporated into
Post Office franchises; would the Post Office or the franchise fund
them. It would depend on the facility, but the Post Office would provide
the products, computers, kits etc. There was a transactional link
between the Post Office and the franchises, with a small fee based
upon the transactions conducted being received from the franchises.
The difference between Newcastle-under-Lyme and the London
authorities the Post Office was working with was noted by Members.
The Borough Council was a two-tier authority with Staffordshire
County Council, with different services provided by the two authorities
and Members questioned how services delivered by the Post Office
would work. It was for the Council to specify what they would like the
Post Office to help them with. For example if a bin collection had been
missed, the Post Office could provide an online notification. The Post
Office was working with county councils and in Warwick there was a
branch in a library.

Members noted that if the Post Office was to take on Council work this
could have implications for Council employees. Some of the
suggestions made would take away frontline staff, but it would be up
to the Council to respond to this in a way that they saw fit. Members
considered it was a topic the Committee may very well wish to
investigate further, but that employees would look on it with
trepidation. At other councils there had been a shift from frontline to
back office staff to support the digital delivery of services.

The Local Government Association was undertaking a piece of work
with around 25 councils regarding the issue, the results of which were
expected to be published imminently. The Committee would await the
results of this work before moving forward with scrutiny. If it was
considered prudent to proceed, then a scrutiny brief would be
provided at a future meeting of the Committee.

The final paragraph of the minutes refers to work that the Local
Government Association was doing. This work was undertaken with
the Department of Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) and the Post
Office, and a joint report entitled “The Local Authority and Post Office
Ltd. Pathfinder Programme — An Evaluation of Strategic Engagement”
has recently been published. This is attached as an Appendix .

Report Overview

Officers have reviewed the report and would summarise the main
findings as follows:

The authors of the report feel that the Pathfinder Programme
demonstrates the value of closer working relationships between Post



2.3

24

2.5

26

2.7

2.8

2.9

3.1

Office and local authorities. It welcomes the assurance given by Post
Office through its plan to invest, maintain and modernise its current
network of no further closures.

The programme is based around the premise that many councils do
not provide frontline services in the community and that the location of
post offices “at the heart of the community” make them ideal to be
used where these frontline services do not currently exist.

The programme seems to be more successful in large conurbations,
covering a wide area where outreach to council services can be best
served by existing Post Office facilities rather than a council starting to
invest in additional staff and buildings.

There are no examples of Post Office working with local authorities to
co locate in existing council offices, or where Post Office has joined
local authorities frontline services where they are already provided
across community areas.

The main service benefits provided by Post Office seem to be in areas
such as Social Services eg carers payments and payments to
vulnerable clients.

The indicative pricing and services the Post Office can provide is
unclear.

There may be a case for the council to provide limited services at
small sub post offices in hard to reach areas to supplement the
customer service centres but clarity of cost would be required.

The report recognises and accepts that each Post Office and local
authority relationship will be different.

Decision Required

Members are requested to review the document and discuss their
ideas for a scrutiny brief to be produced, if desired.

Appendix — “The Local Authority and Post Office Ltd. Pathfinder
Programme — An Evaluation of Strategic Engagement”.

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



The Local Authority and
Post Office Ltd. Pathfinder Programme

An Evaluation of Strategic Engagement

A joint report by BIS, LGA and the Post Office

i
Local k Department

for Business
gg,‘c{g.l;? ment Innovation & Skills P




Page 38



FOREWORDS

JO SWINSON MP

Minister for Employment Relations and
Consumer Affairs, Department of Business,
Innovation and Skills

The Post Office is not only a cherished

national institution and a vital part of our

local communities, but is also an ideal place for
local services to be delivered. Working together,
local authorities and the Post Office can serve
local communities and deliver value for council
taxpayers. The good progress highlighted by the
local authority Pathfinders in this report
provides a valuable template for future
engagement between the Post Office and

the wider local authority sector.

CLLR PETER BOX CBE

Chair, Economy and Transport Board

Local Government Association

Councillors up and down the country

are passionate about their local Post Offices,
reflecting the views of their residents. With

both councils and Post Offices looking at ways
to respond effectively to the needs of local
people and adapt to the current economic
climate, it makes sense for us to explore what
could be achieved by working together. This report
demonstrates the value of strategic engagement
on the ground and the potential to build on that
engagement to help shape a local Post Office
network that best serves the interests of people
while assisting councils to make savings and
Improve access to services.

PAULA VENNELLS

Chief Executive Post Office Limited

The Pathfinder Programme has demonstrated the
clear value of developing and maintaining strong
relationships between the Post Office and councils
in order to serve the needs of local communities.
We are immensely grateful to the 25 councils that
have been involved and to colleagues at the Local
Government Association and the Department of
Business, Innovation and Skills for their advice
and support. We look forward to building on the
lessons learnt from this process as we continue
our historic programme to transform the Post
Office network and develop our services.

CONTENTS

Executive summary

Chapter 1: Background to
the Pathfinder programme

Chapter 2: Activities within
the Pathfinder programme

Chapter 3: Findings from
the Pathfinder experience

Chapter 4: A relationship
model between local
authorities and Post Office
Ltd

Chapter 5: Conclusions

Annex

Page Sh



Page 40



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Pathfinder Programme has
involved Post Office Ltd, the
Department of Business, Innovation
and Skills (BIS) and the Local
Government Association (LGA)
working together to look at the
benefits of enhanced relationships
between Post Offices and local
authorities.

The focus has been on developments
with 25 ‘Pathfinder Councils’ but there
have also been important advances
with a range of further councils across
the country and these are also covered
in this report.

This work has been undertaken
against a backdrop of Post Office
plans to maintain and modernise
its network and to develop products
that enable Post Offices to be an
efficient, accessible ‘Front Office’
connection between people and
Government. It has also taken place
in an environment whereby councils
face significant financial and policy
challenges as they work to deliver
services.

The report finds that, over the past

12 months, relationships have been
developed between Post Office Ltd and
virtually every council in the country.
This is a major advance, creating
better mutual understanding and
creating the conditions for effective
joint work. The report identifies the
developing ‘content’ of these stronger
relationships. This includes helping
to maintain and modernise the Post
Office network in the council area,
increasing ‘transactional’ service
provision via Post Offices, creating

the conditions to explore more
‘transformational’ approaches to
service provision and the promotion of
actions to support financial and digital
inclusion.

The report also illustrates examples
of the benefits these enhanced
relationships have already delivered
—1involving a range of Councils such
as Westminster, Hammersmith

and Fulham, Sheffield, Ryedale,
Birmingham and others.

There is also recognition that benefits
can take time to emerge. Further
work is necessary — for Post Office Ltd
to develop helpful solutions to the
significant challenges that councils
face in looking at future service
delivery and as they develop new
approaches in service procurement
processes such as joint procurement
and frameworks.

The report concludes, however, that
the necessary condition for effective
future joint work between Post Offices
and councils is the formation of
effective relationships. The Pathfinder
Programme has both illustrated and
accelerated this.

The Pathfinder work has created a
platform which can now be developed.
There has been a step change in the
quality and quantity of relationships
between Post Offices and councils and
an understanding of what they can
achieve. Initial examples of progress
are identified within the report
together with a commitment to realise
the future benefits of more effective,
better partnerships.

Page 4h



“As public services
move online, there
is a role for Post
Office branches

in face-to-face
transactions

for those who
can’t or won'’t go
online or where
the transaction
involves a face-to-
face element.”

! 298 42

BACKGROUND TO THE
PATHFINDER PROGRAMME

In November 2010, the Government
announced that Sheffield City
Council would participate in a pilot
partnership arrangement with Post
Office and the National Federation
of Sub-Postmasters (NFSP). The pilot
explored the relationship between
the Post Office and the local council,
and how Post Office branches might
become a front office for local
government in the city.

Findings from the pilot suggested that
councils could develop engagement
with local Post Office branches to
deliver savings and improve access to
services.

The pilot also demonstrated the
fundamental importance of Post
Office and local councils establishing
an open communication channel,
built on a strong platform of mutual
understanding, to achieve their
respective aims and objectives.

To develop these ideas further, in
November 2011 the Government
announced the establishment of the
Post Office and local government
Pathfinder Programme.

The Department of Business,
Innovation and Skills, Post Office Ltd
and the Local Government Association
(LGA) agreed to support a 12-month
programme of engagement. Twwenty-
five local councils, representing a

cross-section of all different types
of councils (rural and urban; large
and small; county, metropolitan and
district), were invited to participate.

The background context to this work
included the Post Office investment
and modernisation programme

and the service delivery and budget
challenges currently faced by local
government. (Further details are
included in the Annex).

The Pathfinder work posed key
questions:

e How might effective
relationships between the Post
Office and local councils be
developed?

e How can these relationships be
used to provide the benefits to
local residents, local councils
and the Post Office?

e What is the nature of these
benefits?

In parallel to this work with

the Pathfinder councils, wider
relationships between the Post

Office and other councils outside the
Pathfinder group have continued to
develop across the UK. These have
emerged as opportunities arose and
have benefitted from the focus upon,
and the learning from, the Pathfinder
Programme.



Chapter 1

KEY ENGAGEMENT DATES

e November 2010
A year-long Partnership pilot
between Post Office Limited,
Sheffield City Council and the NFSP
begins. BIS commits to supporting
greater involvement of local
authorities in its Post Office policy
statement.

e September 2011
Discussions between Post Office Ltd,
BIS and LGA on how to build upon
the Sheffield experience. Initial
discussions for four trial councils
are expanded to include up to 25
councils.

¢ November 2011
The Sheffield partnership concludes,
and the Council, Post Office and
NFSP brief BIS on the benefits of
partnership, but also the lessons
that need to be learnt.

These are published in a joint report,
which says: “As public services

move online, there is a role for Post
Office branches in face-to-face
transactions for those who can’t

or won't go online or where the
transaction involves a face-to face
element.” Strategic Relationships: Post
Office sustainability through partnership
(Sheffield City Council Post Office and
National Federation of Subpostmasters,
2012).

Rt. Hon Ed Davey MP, the then
Minister, writes to the Leaders and

Chief Executives of the 25 Pathfinder
councils, asking them to support the
engagement with Post Office.

January 2012

Round table between Ed Davey
MP, Paula Vennells and senior LGA
representatives to discuss the
Pathfinder programme, and wider
local government engagement.

March 2012

First Forum held for the Pathfinder
Councils at BIS and chaired by Cllr
Box, attended by Paula Vennells and
Norman Lamb MP, the new Postal
Affairs Minister. A number of the
Pathfinder councils present to the

group.

June 2012

Second Pathfinder Forum, timed to
coincide with the LGA conference
held in Birmingham. Further
presentations from local authorities.

November/December 2012

Review of Pathfinder experience
commences including a round-table
event with BIS, LGA, Post Office

Ltd and a number of Pathfinder
Councils.

January/February 2013
Development of Pathfinder
evaluation report and approach for
future engagement.

Page 4h



“As well as helping
proactive network
development, good
communication
between the council
and the Post Office
can also help to
resolve potential
service issues.”

-i:’age 44

ACTIVITIES WITHIN THE
PATHFINDER PROGRAMME

The activities in the Programme have
been built around three key areas:

Establishing relationships between
Post Office Ltd and local authorities

The Post Office and local councils
have historically had intermittent
contact and relationships. There has
been a growing recognition of the
need to explore more progressive and
structured relationships to better
understand and exploit the mutual
opportunities that exist (for example
around service delivery and financial
savings).

Developing the network

The Post Office is undertaking an
investment programme to transform
up to half its network by 2015. This
investment will see the introduction
of around 6,000 new Post Office Local
and Main branches, offering improved
customer service including modern
environments and extended opening
hours.

As part of this programme, Post Office
has sought to engage with councils to:

e Explain the programme

e Provide reassurance that it will
not involve closures

e Gain an understanding of
potential input from the
council (e.g. aligning with local
economic regeneration plans).

Post Office network transformation
will sometimes include a change

of location for a branch. The
opportunity exists to align Post Office
modernisation with major council
plans, for example around town centre

regeneration. In these circumstances
consideration needs to be given to
ensuring decisions best serve the
interests of local communities by
maximising convenience and access.

As well as helping proactive network
development, good communication
between the council and the Post
Office can also help to resolve
potential service issues. Examples
include helping to find a new branch
location to replace one that has
unexpectedly closed, or supporting
temporary facilities while a Post Office
branch is refurbished.

Post Office as a front office for
government service delivery

A key part of Post Office strategy,
backed by the Government, is to
enhance its role in delivering public
services, both locally and nationally.
Typically, these services include:

e In-bound payment (e.g. council
tax, business rates, housing
rents and service charges,
parking penalty charges)

e Applications (e.g. parking
permits, blue badge)

e Qut-bound payment (e.g.
rebates).

These are commercial arrangements
that need to make economic sense

for both councils and the Post Office.
For councils, this may mean being
able to improve access to services and
make cost savings by using Post Office
branches instead of council premises.
Similarly, Post Office needs to cover its
costs and provide a revenue stream for
subpostmasters who operate the vast
majority of local branches.



Chapter 2

The following table shows the Pathfinder councils and activity under way.

Pathfinder council | Council type Number of Post | Post Office New locals and Transactional
Office branches network mains models services available
transformation introduced by at the Post Offices
engagement early 2013 in the council
area
Barnsley Metropolitan 44 v 5 4
Birmingham Metropolitan 122 v 2 v
Devon County 266 v 17 v
Doncaster Metropolitan 54 v 5 v
Durham County 131 v 3 (V4
East Devon District 41 v 5 v
Essex County 241 (4 10
Hammersmith & |London Borough |17 (4 1 4
Fulham
Hertfordshire County 153 v 12 v
Hounslow London Borough 20 v 0 v
Kent County 251 v 8 v
Kingston upon London Borough |15 v 0
Thames
Lancashire County 203 v 4 v
Lancaster District 32 v 0 v
Leeds Metropolitan 105 4 1 4
Liverpool Metropolitan 48 v 2 v
Maidstone Borough Council |29 v 0 v
Castell-nedd Port | Unitary 42 v 1 v
Talbot — Neath
Port Talbot
Northumberland | Unitary County 109 v 4 v
Oxfordshire County 143 v 4 v
Reading Unitary 17 v 0 v
Rotherham Metropolitan 40 v 2 v
Ryedale District 26 v 0 v
Sheffield Metropolitan 79 v 4 v
Wakefield Metropolitan 64 v 3 v

Page 4i-




Westminster
City Council

Pursuing its ambition to go
‘cashless’, Westminster sought
to partner with a trusted service
provider that could increase
access to services for residents.
In 2011 it signed a contract with
Post Office: residents can now use
26 Post Office branches (instead
of previously just three council
front offices) to make a range

of applications and payments
including council tax, business
rates, parking permits, parking
fines and casual street trader
licences.

Both network transformation and
front office service activities support
one another. A network with longer
opening hours is more attractive as
a place to transact council services.
Discussions about these two issues
can often generate additional
potential areas for partnership —

for example in regard to digital
inclusion, social housing or financial
inclusion. As councils review and
seek to reform the delivery of

their local services, potentially in
partnership with other public sector
providers, this can also present an
opportunity to explore the potential
role of their local Post Office network.

! 29€ 46

Birmingham

Post Office can help councils to
move services online. It can do
this by helping people who are not
online get online, by signposting
residents to local internet training
or free internet access. It can also
provide council services digitally
in-branch.

Birmingham City Council and

the Post Office are undertaking a
trial to make council services that
are available digitally, accessible
within the Post Office branch.

The council is keen to progress
with making its services available
online while at the same time
maintaining access across the
community. This poses a challenge
when faced with a significant part
of the local population lacking
internet access. One potential
solution is to make available online
access to council services within
Post Office branches.

In the Birmingham trial customers
can come into the pilot branch

to use a dedicated terminal to
carry out their transaction. Post
Office staff are on hand to provide
support.

The trial will run until April 2013.

Current position: in the Pathfinder
councils

Across all 25 Pathfinder councils there
now exists a range of engagement and
other activities.

A good relationship has been
established with each of the
Pathfinder councils and they have
all engaged positively with the Post

Office on local network issues. The
resulting communications channels
and relationships will be sustained
beyond the Pathfinder Programme
and throughout the Network
Transformation Programme.

Investment in Post Office Local

and Mains branches has now been
undertaken in almost all Pathfinder
areas. This process is accelerating
as the pilot phase for these new
operating models concludes.

Some Pathfinder councils have
reached agreement to offer a widened
range of transactions through

the Post Office. Examples include
Hammersmith & Fulham and Ryedale,
while others continue to develop and
discuss their requirements.

Closer engagement has also helped
Post Office become more informed
about the challenges facing councils
in regard to the introduction of
Universal Credit. Post Office is now in
contact with a number of Pathfinders
and other councils about how it can
help them respond to Social Fund
changes. The Post Office is also now an
approved identity assurance provider
for DWP and other Government
departments, so is better placed than
ever to respond to such challenges.

BIS, LGA and Post Office, have
maintained regular contact and
co-ordination of the programme.
Three meetings of the Pathfinder
councils have been held (London
and Birmingham), supported by
ministerial and chief executive
involvement, to review progress,
share feedback and develop
collaborative working.

Post Office has worked closely with
the LGA’s Local Government Delivery
Council and has exhibited and

held a seminar at the LGA’s Annual
Conference in Birmingham (June).



Chapter 2

Hammersmith
& Fulham

In May 2012, Post Office was
awarded a framework contract
with London Borough of
Hammersmith & Fulham. It
enables residents to access a
range of council services from any
Post Office branch. It can also be
extended to include services such
as parking permits and outbound
payments, supporting residents
without bank accounts.

The new contract is expected to
save Hammersmith & Fulham
taxpayers an initial £90,000 a
year (from 2013). As a framework,
the contract also provides

other London councils with an
opportunity to use the Post Office
network without having to go
through a lengthy and expensive
public procurement process.

Beyond the Pathfinder councils

The past year has seen a level of
engagement and activity between
local authorities and Post Office that
far surpasses anything seen before.
Over 400 councils in England and
Wales have now established channels
of communication and relationships
with Post Office. Typically these are
focused on network transformation
opportunities, but also relate to
delivering local services. Over 300 or
around 75% of all councils in the UK
already use Post Office branches to
support various simple transactional
services including bill payments.

Post Office remains keen to improve
its understanding of the local
government landscape and explore
opportunities for more involved
partnership and joint working. In
addition to the Pathfinder Programme,
it has commissioned three research

bodies, (New Local Government
Network, Localis and CentreForum), to
examine a range of key challenges and
opportunities, including identifying
the potential barriers towards further
partnership and how Post Office can
assist the delivery of digital local
services.

Consideration is also being given to
other areas of local service provision
which Post Office could potentially
support, for example working with
housing associations (Post Office Ltd
now has contracts with a significant
number of housing associations to help
collect rent payments).

The extent of this work in parallel to
the Pathfinder Programme, means that
relationships between councils and Post
Office across the UK, not just within the
Pathfinder group, are helping to shape
the overall conclusions and proposed
ways forward in this report

Hampshire
County Council

Hampshire approached Post Office
seeking a solution to payments

to vulnerable clients, largely
managed through third-party

care organisations. Post Office has
implemented a scheme that allows
carers to collect money for their
clients, following the production of
a dedicated identity card.

Collaboration on network issues

e The Post Office and a district
council were able to compare
regeneration plans to ensure
that the proposed large
investment into modernising a
branch would be co-ordinated
over the next four years with
the council’s plans.

e The Post Office and a unitary
council are working together
to joint fund the move of a
local branch to a new location
as part of a major high street
regeneration programme. This
will ensure the branch is in
a position that offers great
customer access to a number
of services including banking.
With the development putting
the Post Office at the heart of
the community, it will help to
attract new businesses to the
area.

e The Post Office was struggling
to find a new location to replace
a branch where the current
operator had resigned. The only
option appeared to be to move
the branch half a mile away
which was not easily accessible
for customers. However, the
local district council generated
interest from a convenience
store in the district and this will
result in the branch remaining
in the heart of the local
community.

Responding to Social Fund
changes

As a result of the relationships
established, Post Office is better
placed to understand the
developing needs of councils. It
is in contact with almost half

of the Pathfinders and over 50
other councils, to explore how

it can help them respond to the
Social Fund changes by using

its branches to make a variety

of outbound payments to local
residents, including local welfare
assistance, for example. Over 30%
of the councils that expressed an
interest in this service so far, will
be taking it up.

Page 4h



s 29€ 48

FINDINGS FROM THE PATHFINDER More detailed points from councils

EXPERIENCE

The local government perspective

Councils are very supportive of Post
Office network transformation and
have welcomed the assurance that
there will be no further programme
of closures. This provides a stable
and constructive basis for developing
strong and beneficial relationships.

Establishing a clear relationship
channel involving a named ‘account
manager’ who has oversight of the
relationship between the council
and the Post Office, is seen as
critical. This helps to facilitate the
sharing of information and improves
co-ordination between network
investment from the Post Office and
local regeneration plans for example
—which councils have welcomed. It
can also help the effective handling
of operational issues, for example

in helping locate new premises or a
temporary location for a Post Office
branch, if required.

Local councils have a strong interest
in opportunities for co-location,
including making better use of council
assets by locating Post Office services
within them. With the potential

for Post Office branches changing
location within their communities
over the next three years, there is
potential to align the needs of both
councils and the Post Office. Each
case needs to be treated on its own
merits however, with the aspirations
and needs of the council, the Post
Office and Subpostmaster (who is
typically running an independent
local business), given full and proper
consideration.

include:

Different councils have

different needs with respect to a
relationship with the Post Office.
There is a desire for flexibility
rather than ‘one size fits all’
approach. This feedback has helped
to develop the ‘relationship model’
approach presented later in this
report.

Councils have sought greater
clarity on the transactional
services available from local Post
Office branches. This has helped
Post Office to develop ‘suites of
services’ (such as those taken up by
Hammersmith and Fulham).

Some councils urged Post Office
to work with other companies
who already provide services.
The Post Office is developing
commercial relationships
accordingly.

Some councils expressed an
interest in new approaches

to running Post Offices such

as shared locations or social
enterprises. The Post Office

is looking to see if the network
transformation programme provides
any opportunities for such local
developments.

One council felt that overall
Government strategy towards
the Post Office should be
reviewed, emphasising the
importance of setting up a
‘Postbank’. While the Government’s
strategy and funding with respect
to the Post Office is established for
the period to 2015 and does not
include a Postbank, Post Office has
continued to expand the financial
services and access to banking
services it offers. The Post Office now
has three million financial service
customers and with the recent
agreements with HSBC, 95% of UK
current accounts will be accessible at
Post Office branches.



Chapter 3

Oxfordshire County Council

Background

In April 2011, Oxfordshire unanimously passed
a motion to explore joint working with the Post
Office. In November, it was invited to become a
Pathfinder Council. Its expectation was simply
to start a dialogue about building a strategic
relationship with Post Office, explore how the
network can develop locally and to what extent
branches could become a delivery channel for
public services.

Approach

The council identified services at both county
and district level such as customer service,
property and planning and began a series of
working groups involving the Post Office.

Main findings

The council decided to explore opportunities

for co-location and front office service delivery
on a case-by-case basis. This has been useful in
offering an indication of the potential scope and
challenges. Discussions are under way regarding
potential re-location of at least two branches,
with others coming live.

Key lessons — assets

e Commercial confidentiality can make
communication slow and indirect

e The Post Office aim is to protect existing
services, so ‘new’ locations will only be
served if an existing branch is willing to
relocate

e Progress depends on the willingness of a
subpostmaster to re-locate or co-locate

e The details of need and offer must match
— that includes the timing of opportunity,
location, footfall, access, space and other
facility needs, as well as sufficient income
streams from the combined service offer

e Funding for modernising branches
under the Network Transformation
Programme requires matched funding
from subpostmasters, and potentially
co-located services.

Key lessons - service

Council customer service leads have been
interested in understanding the details of the
Post Office offer. The aim of the Post Office is to
steer customers to interact using online methods
within branches (e.g. self-service machines) and
develop digital champions. Also, providing a face-
to-face service fits well with the council’'s work to
encourage channel shift improvements.

Detailed discussions have started on looking into a
business case for the Post Office to deliver specific
services for councils.

Conclusions
Direct lines of communication are in place. The
council is in a good position to respond to future
opportunities:
e Co-location where subpostmasters express
an interest in changing premises
e Co-location as part of local regeneration
programmes or master planning
e Service delivery where councils are
considering whether to further develop,
integrate and/or diversify their customer
service offer
e Service delivery though introduction of
Universal Credit.

Summary - key messages

e Itisimportant to understand each other’s
business, to be clear about needs and offers
and to identify key contacts as a basis for
discussion

e Opportunities for co-location and delivery of
transactional services will arise, and need to
be explored, on a case-by-case basis

e Success will depend on a commercial
business case that works for all partners.

Page 4h



Ryedale District Council

Ryedale commissioned a review of the Post
Office network in August 2010. Its aim was to:

Subsequently, the council decided to withdraw

from its current area office provision and migrate

customers who currently undertake financial

transactions through the area office to the Post
local communities Office. This increases access points for payment

e Provide an evidence base from which to of bills to the council from the four under current
influence any future proposed closures or arrangements to 27 (26 provided by the Post Office,
reductions in level of service one at council offices).

e Consider the options for delivering these
services in the future.

e Improve the availability of services in

This has a number of advantages for the council
and its residents:
The review involved meetings with local

subpostmasters and Post Office Ltd, surveys e Residents and businesses can pay bills issued

of branch customers and general public to
understand how communities use and value
Post Office services. It also tested whether
people would consider accessing council
services through the Post Office. External
research was also analysed.

The review found:

by the council in any Post Office through the
use of a bar code on every bill issued

The council will save £50k a year through
withdrawal from the area offices, with no
compulsory redundancies

Increasing footfall through existing Post
Office branches in anticipation of any
future changes to the way the network

is configured, such as the introduction of
Post Office Local model, thereby helping to
and seen as a vital community asset sustain the viability of the network and local
e Communities value their local Post assets such as the local shop
Offices and want us to help make the e Helping to ensure the maximum collection
network more sustainable rates for localised council tax and business
e People would consider accessing rates from April 2013.
transactional council services through
the Post Office.

e Post Office branches are highly valued

Sheffield City Council

In December 2012, Sheffield City Council will start an innovative scheme whereby the Post Office
‘payout’ service will be used to help young adults leaving care to access support payments at local Post
Offices. This will be more convenient for the young adults and assist their ability to budget and it is

an efficient approach for the Council. The scheme is an example of how an ongoing relationship can
develop and yield mutually beneficial results over time.

wnt 29¢ 20



Chapter 3

The Post Office perspective

The Pathfinder Programme has
successfully established an open
channel, and relationships between
Post Office and the local councils,
are based on a better mutual
understanding of needs and
aspirations.

This helps the process of developing
the network to serve the needs

of customers and helps inform
discussions about investments
within the Network Transformation
Programme. There can also be
joined-up response to any temporary
problems in the network — for
example, if a branch shuts
unexpectedly for reasons beyond Post
Office’s control.

Post Office now has a much better
understanding of the diverse needs
of local councils, in particular the
budgetary and service challenges
they face. This has provided it with a
more informed position from which
to develop and tailor its product and
service offerings.

There are important commercial
lessons for the Post Office:

e Procurement exercises with
individual local authorities
are resource-hungry for Post
Office and need to be balanced
against the potential returns
from winning the contract.
Resource realities inevitably
focus interest towards larger
councils offering potentially
greater revenue opportunities.
Consideration of wider procurement
approaches — such as framework
contracts or across groups of

councils — and a willingness by
councils to use these places is
therefore important. The London-
wide framework established by
the Hammersmith & Fulham
provides a potential example.
Local authorities identified

a desire for a simple
articulation of available
services with indicative
pricing and expressed some
frustration that this wasn't
readily available. This requires
the Post Office to understand
potential demand levels to
develop a pricing structure that
is commercially viable. The
Pathfinder programme has helped
Post Office develop its thinking to
establish such a model.

There is an important ongoing
role for both ‘transactional
services’ that deliver
improved efficiencies and
financial savings for local
councils, and an ‘invest to
save business case’. In many
cases a wholesale change

is required in the way the
services in question are
delivered. This takes time,
requiring a business case and
ultimately council cabinet
approval.

The Pathfinder engagement
has strengthened Post Office’s
belief that the opportunity
exists to develop long-term
strategic partnerships with
councils, beyond a collection
of front office transactions.
Leveraging the full range of
its multi-channel capabilities,
Post Office sees potential in
supporting transformation of

service delivery to the digital
councils of the future.

It is also clear that councils
have a distinct interest in how
Post Office branches can assist
with the financial and digital
inclusion agendas in their areas.
Post Office branches are a key
part of the infrastructure in
many deprived areas and are
regarded by customers as a
‘universal space’. The customer
base can include those who

are financially and digitally
excluded - so harnessing the
interest of local authorities

and the capabilities of the Post
Office has potential for these
customers.

The LGA argues that in order
to secure the significant public
sector savings required now
and in the future, councils and
their local partners (Police, NHS,
etc), will need to fundamentally
reform how their services are
delivered — with much closer
partnership. Notwithstanding
the scale of the challenges

for councils, the Post Office

can have some part to play.

It is increasingly focused on
becoming a front office for
government and actively
supports the delivery of digital
public services. Increased
engagement with councils and
other public providers, such as
housing associations and has
demonstrated the potentially
important role of the Post Office
in helping such bodies deliver
greater efficiencies in the
future.

Page Sh



Chapter 4
A RELATIONSHIP MODEL

A relationship model between
local authorities and Post Office
Ltd.

Each local authority has its

own characteristics, challenges
and approaches that reflect

its local community. In turn,
each council area has a distinct
network of Post Office branches.
So each Post Office-council
relationship will be different.

The Pathfinder Programme has
however enabled us to identify

some common themes in these Establish the relationship
relationships. This supports You need to start by opening
the development of a model communication and then
which identifies the key issues maintain it. This requires

that shape a relationship. This awareness and understanding

model can help define the
current state of a relationship.
It also enables assessment and
evaluation of progress over
time.

The model identifies the need
to first establish and maintain a
relationship between Post Office
and the local council.

Each relationship will be shaped
by specific factors emanating from
both Post Office and the individual
local council. Each relationship
will therefore be a unique mix of
the following:

m— 29€ 52



Chapter 4

Influences for a local council:
Cost savings
Procurement processes and timings
Strategy, policy and governance
Local circumstances e.g. regeneration
opportunities

Network relationship
Transactional services partnership
Transformational partnership

Financial inclusion relationship

Digital inclusion relationship

Influences for Post Office:
e Network transformation opportunities
Network circumstances
Need for profitable revenue generation
Investment resource availability
Procurement approaches
Government policy towards Post Office

’@\ e Network transformation: Liaison about the £ e Financial inclusion: Where it is desired to
investment being made to develop local improve financial inclusion in an area, work
branches through to 2015. between a local authority and Post Office can

L&& e Transactional services: Potential provision assist (e.g. investment in a branch providing
by local Post Office branches to do key services to a deprived area or the provision
straightforward transactions on behalf of of services via Post Office branches to promote
the local authority (e.g. council tax). inclusion).

‘ e Transformational services: Where a local [ ° Digital inclusion: Where it is desired to develop
authority is fundamentally rethinking its the digital council of the future, local Post Office
service provision approach and local Post branches can provide information to help people
Office branches are being considered for to get online, they can assist those who are not
a role (e.g. identity verification or a role in online to still access services conveniently and
end-to-end service provision). they can help in areas where face-to-face activity

is still needed (e.g. verifying identity).

Page Sh



! 298 94

“Establishing an
open channel of
communication
between every
council and the
Post Office is a
pre-requisite for
making progress.”

CONCLUSIONS

Pressures on public finances

are expected to continue for the
foreseeable future, increasing the need
for new, innovative ways to deliver
more public services more efficiently.

Post Offices are an important part of
the social and economic infrastructure
in every local council area.

A constructive dialogue between
local councils and the Post Office

is therefore underway across the
country enabled by the Pathfinder
programme and the wider Post Office
modernisation programme. This
will create more effective liaison on
the maintenance and development
of Post Offices in the local area and
exploration on new solutions for
public service delivery.

Establishing an open channel of
communication between every council
and the Post Office is a pre-requisite
for making progress.

The Post Office has established

an account management team

that includes 10 regionally-

based stakeholder managers.

These managers are responsible

for maintaining positive, open
relationships with every UK council.
Over the past year, relationships
have been established with over 400
councils.

For relationships to flourish and be
productive there needs to be mutual
understanding of circumstances and
priorities. With its regional teams



Chapter 5

actively pursuing relationships with
all councils, Post Office and councils
are now able to work better together,
for example as the Post Office
modernises branches and in local
regeneration activities.

Significant opportunities exist for
using Post Office branches to deliver
local public services.

The Post Office network is being used
to deliver a growing range of public
services. The Pathfinder Programme
has helped focus attention on

the particular opportunities and
challenges facing councils and Post
Office in delivering local services.

There exists a keen desire on the part
of many councils to use Post Office
branches to deliver more services.
Post Office is keen to take on this
type of work. However, the Pathfinder
Programme has highlighted the need
to develop appropriate services and
prices that reflect the often small-size
of council contracts and particular
service needs. It can help where
councils choose to procure jointly.

Despite this, Post Office is providing

a growing range of front office
transactional services for councils
across the country. It has also recently
developed a new product for councils
to support Social Fund payments.

Post Office is also developing its
promotion activities to improve
relationships and increase awareness
across local government of its
modernisation programme.

In a developing field, it is critical to
continue exploring the policy and
practical issues surrounding how the
Post Office infrastructure in an area
can best help with the provision of
cost effective local public services.
Post Office has commissioned three
independent organisations - Localis,
Centre Forum and the New Local
Government Network - to work

with councils to examine a range of
issues. These include identifying and
removing some of the barriers and
exploiting the opportunities of digital
delivery.

In summary, the focus and energy
created by the Pathfinder Programme
has helped lift the relationship
between councils and the Post Office
to a new, positive level. Critically,
relationships have been formed

across the country with a better
understanding of how those individual
relationships can be developed in

recognition of the often differing needs

and priorities of individual councils.
With the Government’s continued
support underpinning Post Office
modernisation, and the widespread
support for Post Offices to be utilised
as a ‘Front Office’ for government
service provision, the potential for
greater collaboration between councils
and Post Office in supporting local
communities looks increasingly
positive.

Page Si_



w298 >0

“Demand for Post
Office branches
to deliver public
services is
increasing.”

ANNEX

Post Office Ltd is now an
independent organisation, newly
separate from Royal Mail. It is
focusing on its key markets of mails,
financial services and, especially
relevant here, government services.

Post Office has a clear strategy,
supported by government, to
maintain the size and current
geographical accessibility of its
network (more than 11,500 branches
across the UK). This involves an
investment strategy through to
2015 that will assist around half

of its branches to modernise their
branches, improving the customer
environment and increasing access
and convenience by offering longer
opening hours.

Post Office branches are generally
regarded as providing convenient,
universal and trusted access to
public services. Around 20 million
people and half of all small
businesses visit the Post Office
every week. Post Office branches
are typically run by small local
businesses, at the heart of the
communities and close to the
customers they serve. They are
widely seen as a key part of the local
social fabric. Independent studies
have suggested the ‘social value’
of the Post Office Network is worth
more than £2.3bn a year to the UK.
Understandably, local authorities
have always been keen to ensure
that Post Office branches in their
area remain trading and viable.



Annex

In an increasingly digital world,

the Post Office provides a ‘human
touch’. It has the proven capability

to handle complex and sensitive
transactions on behalf of local and
central government. It provides a
secure, trusted face-to-face interaction
with customers when the process
demands it and supports improved
efficiencies by sharing information
securely, digitally and efficiently with
government back offices. The Post
Office Network partners with public
service providers to ensure universal
and convenient access to high quality,
digital public services.

Demand for Post Office branches to
deliver public services is increasing.
For more complex and sensitive online
transactions, a face-to-face element
is needed, for example to provide
identity assurance (through biometric
data capture and/or document
checking). There is also a need to
provide support for those people

who are not online, or not confident
of conducting transactions online.
Supporting transactions on behalf

of public service providers enables
improved efficiencies to be achieved
through economies of scale and
rationalisation.

Local authorities face immense
challenges in delivering cost savings.
Councils are seeking to cut costs by
reducing unnecessary face-to-face
contact in managing customer contact
and transactions, whilst helping to
ensure that people who may struggle

to access services online can still be
supported effectively.

Councils have wider responsibilities
for delivering localism, promoting
social value and cohesion, supporting
local businesses and economic
regeneration. All this must be done
in a manner that meets modern
customer service expectations about
accessibility, choice of channel and
ease of use.

It is a daunting and unprecedented
task. Local councils are approaching
these challenges in many different
ways.

The challenge and the opportunity

is whether the relationship between
Post Office and local councils can be
developed to meet these new realities.

e By working together can Post
Office branches and local
councils enable customers
to retain accessible, trusted,
universal access to local service
provision?

e Can this be done in a way
that both improves council
efficiencies and reduces cost,
while simultaneously enhancing
Post Office sustainability?

The starting point is to explore how
Post Office and local councils develop
relationships from which the answers
will flow. This is the challenge the
Pathfinder Programme sought to
address.

Page Sh



Page 58



&
Loca { I
Local Department

for Business
Esg,\cfaeﬁmment Innovation & Skills

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Agenda Item 9

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM’S REPORT TO THE
CABINET

Date 22 MAY 2013

KEELE GOLF COURSE; interim maintenance and management arrangements and long
term options

Submitted by: Executive Management Team
Portfolio: Culture and Leisure; Regeneration, Planning and Town

Centres; and Finance and Budget Management

Ward(s) affected: Keele, Silverdale and Parksite

Purpose of the Report

a) To appraise members of interim management arrangements that have been
established to facilitate ongoing provision of the municipal golf service at Keele Golf
Course following actions taken by the liquidator to disclaim the lease of the property
and to seek members’ endorsement of related decisions.

b) To appraise members of the long-term options for ongoing provision of municipal
pay-as-you-play golf at this location and to seek approval for a preferred course of
action.

Recommendations

a) To note the actions taken by officers to facilitate ongoing provision of the
municipal golf service at Keele, in particular the award of interim contracts for
up to 6 months for both maintenance of the golf course (18-hole and 9-hole)
and management of the operation to Glendale Managed Services Ltd.

b) Further to recommendation (a) to seek members’ approval for the setting of
associated fees and charges as set out in the report (to follow).

c) That members instruct officers to proceed with a formal, competitive two-
stage marketing process with the aim of securing a tenant who can deliver a
commercially viable municipal golf offer at Keele Golf Course by way of a
commercial lease on the basis set out in the report.

d) That officers be authorised to prepare the necessary draft lease document in
accordance with a specification that shall have been agreed by the Portfolio
Holders for Culture and Leisure; Regeneration, Planning and Town Centres;
and Finance and Budget Management.

e) That officers report back the outcome of the overall marketing process to
enable a final decision to be made about the award of any long term lease.

Reasons
It is necessary to advise members formally about the interim maintenance and management

arrangements. Additionally it is important to provide members with information to enable
decisions to be made about the preferred medium to long term option for the site.

1 Page 61



Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

21

2.2

23

Page 62

The Council managed and operated a municipal golf activity at Keele up to 2003 when
it was considered appropriate to seek commercial interest in the service by way of a
commercial lease.

Following several years of difficult trading conditions Keele Golf Centre Ltd. was placed
into a Creditors Voluntary Liquidation arrangement on 21 March 2013, notification of
which was received by the Council shortly afterwards. The Liquidator, in discharging his
responsibilities, took steps to formally disclaim the commercial lease in relation to the
golf course with effect from 1% May 2013.

Officers briefed Cabinet Members about the emergent position and it was agreed as
appropriate to establish interim arrangements to enable ongoing pay-as-you-play
municipal golf.

In terms of course maintenance a contract has been let to Glendale Managed Services
Ltd.. This situation arose following a meeting with the company (they are the council’s
current grounds maintenance contractor for cemeteries and crematorium) on 25" April
2013 to follow up on an initial approach made to the contractor to establish
interest/appetite for a short term grounds maintenance contract (up to 6 months) for
Keele Golf Course (once it became clear that the previous lease had been disclaimed).
The critical issue was to balance the necessity of securing practical arrangements at
very short notice with the importance of achieving good value for money (see section
9).

With regard to overall operational management of the golf facility a contract has been
let to Glendale Managed Services Ltd . This management contract provides for the
management support that the course needs to operate. This includes taking bookings,
collecting and accounting for fees and charges, the supply and sale of sundry items,
marketing, and other associated course management issues to meet the demands of
the operation. Direct costs associated with the operation are either paid for directly by
the Council (for example NNDR, utility costs, building repairs and maintenance etc) or
recharged by the operator (for example, where appropriate, direct staff costs, buggy
hire).

Issues

There are two key issues arising from the current situation:-

. Clarification of the present position and for members to note the reasoning for
officers’ actions;

o The necessity to consider medium to long term actions, including an assessment
of the Council’'s broader policy aims and objectives and taking account of
financial/resource issues.

Present position

Members will note, in section 1 of this report, the steps that have been taken by officers
in consultation with Cabinet Members in order to facilitate ongoing pay-as-you-play
municipal golf at Keele. Officers can confirm that the steps taken were compliant with
provisions made in the Council’s constitution and Scheme of Delegation relating to
urgent action.

The justification for maintaining service provision on an interim basis includes the
following key points:

o to safeguard the service as a benefit to the local community;

o to protect the asset from a broader asset management perspective;

2



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

3.1

o there was sufficient evidence to indicate that an interim arrangement should be
financially viable and,
. to avoid prejudicing the long term position whilst options are properly explored.

Medium to long term position

it is vitally important that the Council takes the opportunity, afforded by the unfortunate

demise of the previous operator, to review the long term options properly. At section 3

there are three simple options for Members to consider. The following key issues

should be taken into account in identifying a preferred solution:

i) the strategic case for the long term provision of municipal golf in this location
(including any health and wellbeing issues); and

i) strategic asset management considerations (set out in the context of current and
emerging planning policies).

The Council’s current Asset Management Strategy includes a series of generic policies
and clarifies the Council’s property-related asset management objectives. The critical
policy states that “the Authority will only hold sufficient property to meet a service need
or strategic objective”.

In this case it may be argued that an accessible outdoor leisure facility of the kind
provided at Keele Golf Course contributes to the Council’s strategic priorities around
the promotion of active and healthy lifestyles. Golf contributes to health and wellbeing
by providing a stimulating sporting challenge combined with a healthy walk in pleasant
surroundings and can be played by people of all abilities and ages, both individually or
in a team. It may be a casual pastime or a competitive activity. A walk round Keele Golf
Course covers approximately four kilometres, which if done regularly provides good
exercise.

With regard to the need to provide a municipal golf facility there is anecdotal evidence
that private members clubs serving our community are increasingly providing options
for non-members to play on a casual basis (as well as offering innovative membership
packages to make it more affordable). At the same time there is evidence that the
Keele Municipal Golf Course facility remains popular.

Your officers feel that to undertake a strategic review of golf provision/demand may
prove a little inconclusive and therefore fail to provide Members with a clear sense of
future need. It may be preferable at this stage to combine the evidence that we glean
from the interim management arrangement which, combined with any market interest in
the facility, should help to inform the long term stance.

From a broader asset management perspective, should it become evident that the
ongoing provision of municipal golf is unviable then the Council would have to consider
alternative uses and possible disposal. As Members will be aware, the Keele Golf
Course facility lies in the Green Belt and the current national/local planning policies
presume against “inappropriate development”. In summary this means that the current
recreation use is acceptable (as would be uses such as agriculture, etc). The corollary
being that there is no policy support for development in this location at this time.
Nevertheless taking account of wider and future corporate priorities, and the medium
term potential for changes in the planning policy framework, the Council should
consider protecting its long term interests by given careful consideration to the terms
and time period relating to any new lease of the land.

Options Considered

To mothball the course whilst the Council consider long term options — this could be
regarded as a low cost option that would enable a strategic review to be undertaken
from both a service and asset management perspective. However this option is likely

3 Page 63



3.2

41

4.2

5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

Page 64

to be seriously harmful to the long term prospects of municipal golf provision in this
location because of the damage caused to the course through lack of proper
maintenance and loss of loyalty/good will from the existing customer base.

To establish ongoing interim maintenance and management arrangements whilst the
Council considers long term options — this option presents the short term benefit of
keeping the course in operation although this has been balanced with the aim of
minimising financial risk to the Council. The second strand of this option (and the
previous one too) demands consideration of whether the Council wishes to take the
opportunity of:

(a) undertaking a strategic review of the activity (i.e. municipal pay-as-you-play
golf) in advance of a strategic asset management review (the latter in the context of
current and emerging policies).  This approach would tend to direct the Council
towards letting short term maintenance and management contracts awaiting the
outcome of a strategic review; or

(b) the alternative to this approach would be to test the market interest in
operating a municipal golf activity in the long term prior to making any decision to
proceed. Such an approach would tend towards a commercial lease as the vehicle to
achieve the Council’s objectives. This would involve a two-stage process that would
provide the Council with an early indication of market interest through an “Expression of
Interest” stage. As indicated above it would be appropriate to set the terms of any lease
on a relatively short term basis, say up to five years. However there is a risk that such a
time period may have a significant adverse effect upon the market interest and value of
such a lease. For the latter reason it would be advisable to invite interested parties to
submit an alternative bid for longer time periods to be agreed by officers in consultation
with Cabinet members before the marketing process begins.

Preferred option

In view of the considerations set out above option 3.2 (b) would appear to be the most
appropriate at this stage.

In terms of a timetable for such a process your officers consider that it is realistic to
complete the first stage (seeking Expressions of Interest) within 6 weeks with the
overall selection process of securing a preferred operator taking up to 4 months.

Recommendations

See first page of the report

Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strateqy and Corporate Priorities

Clearly the greatest alignment lies with the Council’s priority relating to Healthy and
Active Communities.

Legal and Statutory Implications

Whilst there is no statutory obligation for the Council to provide municipal golf facilities
it does have powers to do so if it so wishes (under the Local Government Misc.
Provisions Act 1976).

The Council has powers to dispose of land (under the Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended)); any decision to “dispose” of the facility by way of a commercial lease (or
otherwise) has to meet the test of achieving “best consideration” for the Council (in
relation to the commercial value of the asset).

4



7.3

8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

There is a range of other provisions in relation to the ownership of premises of this
nature, including health and safety responsibilities and statutory provisions relating to
matters such as public rights of way.

Equality Impact Assessment

At this stage no formal assessment has been undertaken but officers can confirm at
this stage that measures will be put in place in any long term arrangement to minimise
the risk of inequalities arising for any client group.

Financial and Resource Implications

No provision has been made in either the capital or revenue budgets for 2013/14 (or in
the MTFS) to support municipal golf provision at Keele.

From evidence available to officers at this stage it is envisaged that the cost of interim
maintenance and management arrangements described earlier should be covered by
income generated from fees and charges. However, income can be severely affected
by adverse weather conditions so close monitoring of all income and expenditure will
be undertaken.

With regard to the interim maintenance and management contracts it is important for
the Council to satisfy itself that value for money can be demonstrated. In terms of the
grounds maintenance contract Glendale Managed Services Ltd have provided a cost
estimate (based on the work programme from the previous grounds maintenance
contract for the golf course from the late 1990s) for a 4-month period for 27 holes, with
the potential for 2 x 1 month extensions should the council require this option.

The estimate has been initially benchmarked against the contract rates from the 1990s
with inflationary uplifts and the additional 9-hole course (which didn’t exist at the time of
the previous contract) included and the estimate is considered to represent value for
money when benchmarked against a quotation from another prospective contractor.

Glendale Managed Services Ltd has agreed that the work can be instructed as a
variation to the existing cemeteries and crematorium contract as the most appropriate
method of securing the work.

Like the maintenance arrangements it has been necessary to establish an interim
management contract at short notice. Again, officers have taken steps to ensure that
value for money can be demonstrated in the letting of this short term arrangement.

With regard to fees and charges your officers have set these on the basis of those that
were in place prior to the previous operator’s business going into liquidation (exercising
urgency provisions in the scheme of delegation included within the Council’s Financial
Regulations. Certain issues around charges are still being clarified with the previous
operator and others associated with the previous operation. Full details of all charges
will be the subject of a supplementary appendix that will be circulated prior to the
meeting.

In terms of the longer term arrangements it is envisaged that a commercial operator will
be found through a competitive tendering process on the basis of no subsidy from the
Council and no capital contribution.

5 Page 65



10.

10.1

10.2

Major Risks

The most significant risk lies in the Council’s ability to secure a commercial operator
who is capable of delivering municipal pay-as-you-play golf at this location at no direct
cost to the Council. The two-stage process described above should enable the Council
to consider alternative options should this exercise prove to be fruitless.

With regard to operational risks a full range of service/maintenance checks were

undertaken on the first day of ownership. Additionally a comprehensive risk log has been
undertaken which will be made available upon request.

10.3

At this stage income estimates have been based upon historic usage and limited

information gleaned over recent weeks from those associated with the previous operation.

As

indicated above it will be necessary to closely monitor income over the period of the

interim arrangements in order that any mitigating actions may be taken to minimise the risk
of significant financial losses being accrued.

11.

12.
12.1
13.
13.1
14.

14.1

Page 66

Key Decision Information

The matters raised in this report, at this stage, do not constitute a key decision. The
letting of any lease or contract in due course would amount to a key decision and the
appropriate notification will be made in the Forward Plan.

Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions

None relevant to the matters raised in this report.

List of Appendices

None.

Background Papers

Contract documents held in office files.



Agenda Item 10

Council Plan 2013/14 to 2015/16

Submitted by: Head of Business Improvement and Partnerships

Portfolio: Communications, Transformation & Partnerships

Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

For information only

Recommendation

. That the report be received

Reasons

The Council Plan underpins the whole planning structure of the Authority and should be the
document which clearly informs the organisation and acts as the major driver behind any budget
proposals, longer-term strategic plans and also the service planning process. By monitoring of the
plan the council is able to evidence its impact over time against the planned outcomes and identify
areas of improvement. The Council plan was approved by Cabinet at its meeting in March and
recommended that it be adopted by council.

1. Background and issues

1.1 A new style Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council Plan for the period 2013/14 to 2015/16
was proposed which replaces the Corporate Plan document due to be refreshed at this time.
The council took the opportunity to develop the plan to reflect some of the changes in our
political and economic environment and the work undertaken in the Performance
Management Framework Review. The plan has two sections and is attached in its entirety
at the appendix to this report. The second section details the measures and activities in
order to monitor progress of the plan.

1.2 The plan sets out the new vision for the Council: To create a borough that is prosperous,
clean, healthy and safe.

1.3 The priorities proposed set out in the plan are proposed as:
¢ A clean, safe and sustainable borough,
e A borough of opportunity,
¢ A healthy and active community and
e Becoming a co-operative council delivering high quality, community-driven services

1.4 The adopted approach for the new plan was to be outcome-focused but ensuring strong
links to the four priorities

1.5 As well as forming the basis for corporate, strategic and service planning, the proposed
Council Plan also plays a significant role in the development of the Council’s budget over the
period covered by the Plan, as it sets out the priority areas and the desired outcomes for the
organisation against which budget decisions can be made as part of the process of putting
the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) together.

2 Development of the Council Plan and the additional Monitoring Section

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\7\1\AI00004178\$2rc0fer0.doc Page 67



21

2.2

2.3

24

3.1

3.2

3.3

41

Officers have developed the new Council Plan, its content and layout, taking in to

consideration the findings and information from the work undertaken earlier this year in the

Performance Management Framework Review. To ensure the document reflects the overall

ambition of the council over the next three years, the following was necessary:

a review of the plan structure;

involve stakeholders in the process

review the vision of the council;

review the four key priorities to be relevant and meaningful;

review and challenge the outcomes ensuring they are linked to the priorities;

ensure the strategies of the council are linked to the plan;

acknowledge any drivers for change which impact on the content and reflect the

developments;

e workshops and one-to-one meetings with officers held to determine monitoring activities
and measures.

The Plan renews the existing vision for the Council, with the new vision expressed as “to
create a Borough that is prosperous, clean, healthy and safe”.

The Plan articulates a change from the previous priority of “transforming our council to
achieve excellence” by a new priority “becoming a co-operative council delivering high
quality, community driven services”.

The Plan also details a new set of seventeen outcomes and the accompanying measures
and activities to measure and monitor the impact upon these desired outcomes.

Consultation and other influences

The vision, priorities and outcomes have been considered through various meetings and
workshops undertaken in the Performance Management Framework Review and further
work to complete the second section, the monitoring of the outcomes, was undertaken in
planned workshops in September.

Ongoing consultation administered and analysed by the Borough Council Communications
Section in 2011/12 and 2012/13 has been used in the development of the plan. Also
services undertake satisfaction surveys in-house on a regular basis to inform the
management of service delivery.

Demographic and other “profile” data, and changes observed that suggest trends, are
covered in the section of the plan entitled “drivers for change”. These drivers can be
summarised as:

Our area and its people;

The Welfare Reform Act;

The Localism Act;

Our local strategies;

Performance Management Review,;
Making good use of public money.
The Way We Work;

Options, Proposal and Reasons for Preferred Solution

Effective strategic planning benefits from a single document outlining issues and
assumptions and stating the general direction for the organisation in question - the attached

D:\R&@@\@B\AgendaItemDocs\8\7\1\AI000041 78\$2rc0fer0.doc



4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

draft Council Plan is designed to achieve this for the future development of Newcastle under
Lyme B.C.

The Council Plan should be the document which clearly informs the council and should act
as the major driver behind any budget proposals, longer-term strategic plans and also the
service planning process.

Members are asked to consider the Plan and this covering report which was approved by
Cabinet at the meeting 6 March 2013 and recommended that it be adopted by council.

In considering the Plan/report, Members can: -

e Option 1: Accept and approve the adoption of the new style Council Plan and its
contents as provided
(This is the recommended option, albeit with further modifications and additions to be made
as required by council)

e Option 2: Request significant further changes to the Plan before the document
can be approved and adopted

(This is also recommended, although Members should be aware that this will delay the
process of publishing the Plan and will also have an effect potentially on other related
processes such as service planning for 2013/14 onwards)

Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strateqy Priorities and Corporate
Priorities

This document identifies the corporate priorities of the Authority aligned to those of the
Sustainable Community Strategy, linked to expected outcomes.

Legal and Statutory Implications

Officers have drafted this plan in line with current codes and legislation.

Equality impact

There are no differential impacts in this report.

Financial and Resource Implications

The plans in this report are to be considered against the overall Budget Strategy of the
Council.

Major risks

The plans in this report are to be considered against the overall Risk Strategy of the Council.
This is done as part of the Service and Financial Planning process.

Key Decision information

This report is in the Forward Plan.

List of Appendices

Draft Council Plan.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\7\1\AI00004178\$2rc0fer0.doc Page 69



12. Background Papers

Working papers held by officer in Council Plan 2013/14 files.

D:\Rag@vﬁa@mgenda|temDocs\8\7\1\A|000041 78\$2rc0fer0.doc



Newcastle-under-Lyme
Borough Council Plan

www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

2013-14 10 2015-16




Contents

Message from the Leader of the Council 1
Welcome from the Chief Executive

Our Vision

0 W N

Priorities, Outcomes and Activities

Page 72 Published by Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council - April 2013



Councillor
Gareth Snell

Leader of the Council

he Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough

Council Plan serves as the basis for
everything we do as a council. The
services we provide to our residents
and the way we go about improving
the borough are all determined by
this plan and is empowered by the
mandate the current administration
has from the people of the borough.

With bold and ambitious plans to
make the borough the best it can be,
the plan sets out what we hope to
achieve over the next three years and
how we are going to turn a plan into

reality.

Message

from the Leader of the Council
Councillor Gareth Snell

Councils continue to have their fund-
ing cut by Government and legislative
changes to the responsibilities of local
councils means there will be some
tough decisions ahead in the near
future. This plan demonstrates our
commitment to protecting vital public
services and addressing the needs of
local people while keeping Council
Tax as low as possible during these
difficult times.

. . . Using
resources well

to provide good
public services

. . . targeting
support for
those who need

it most

. . . local people
involved and
having a say

Overall this plan is everyone’s plan.
The outcomes and priorities are
derived from the mandate the Labour
Party received at the ballot box and
reflect the promises we made to
everyone. However, this plan is a living
document and we want to encourage
local people to help shape our
borough by improving opportunities to
get involved and have a real say in the
decisions that affect their lives.

To ensure the success of the council
and delivery of our Council Plan, we
want to make it easier for everyone to
find out about their council, talk to
their councillors, help develop their
local services, and help us tackle the
issues that are really important to you.

Page 73



e want to make the borough a
better place to live, work and
invest.

Our Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough
Council Plan sets out how the council
will seek to achieve this over the next
three years.

In these challenging economic times it
is important that we use resources
prudently and effectively. In producing
this plan we have reviewed the way
we do things and considered what is
important for the borough.

Our plan focuses on doing those
things which will deliver our priorities
and ensure that we continue to deliver
high quality services for our
customers.

Welcome

from the Chief Executive

John Sellgren

Chief Executive

—
w

-
|
i

B

This Council Plan takes
account of several drivers
for change:-

e Our area and its
people

e The Welfare Reform
Act

* Localism Act
e Our Local strategies

* Performance
Management review

e The Way We Work

e Making good use of
public money



Our Vision

... Is to create a borough that is
prosperous, clean, healthy and safe

We want Newcastle-under-Lyme
to be a borough in which
people are proud o live, work, visit
and do business. Moreover, we want
the borough council to be an open,
honest and transparent organisation
which is accountable to local people
and which, through co-operation with
partners, will work together to improve
where we all live. By trying to deliver
better services, focused on the needs
of local people, we aim to create a
council which is responsive and in
touch with the people it serves.

over the last few years J }

Priorities

A clean, safe and
sustainable borough

We will improve the environment so
that everyone can enjoy our safe,
sustainable and healthy borough.

A borough of
opportunity

We will work with our partners to
maximise investment and encourage
enterprise and emp|oyment -
generating activities that will create
opportunities for improving the
wealth, prosperity and housing
choices of our residents.

A healthy and active
community

We will work with partners to make
sure residents and visitors are able to
access a range of facilities and
support activities that will enable them

to improve their health and quality of
life.

Becoming a co-operative
council which delivers
high quality, community-
driven, services.

Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough
Council is working towards being a
co-operative council which means
we are working together with our
residents, partners and local
organisations to collectively deliver
the best we can using the resources
we have.

Page 75



1 1 Newcastle
isa

co-operative

council / }

What is a
co-operative council?

We are working fo:-

® Bring more public services
together so that people get what
they need at the right place and
the right time.

® Encourage more involvement from
local peop|e and our staff in the
planning and delivery of services.

® Support our communities better
and encourage people to do
more to help their own
communities.

Whilst we still face budget cuts, the
council is making sure local people
are more involved in reducing our
costs and chq”enging what we spend.

We are involving the community and
business leaders in developing our
future plans, drawing on the skills and
expertise that exists in the borough.

Page 76

Working with our
communities

The Newcastle Partnership works with
11 Locality Action Partnerships (LAPs)
across the borough in offering
opportunities for residents and
communities fo get involved in
activities, engagement and decision-
making in their area.

LAPs represent the Partnership’s
established infrastructure for the
delivery of locality working and offer
communities enhanced and focused
access to a range of partners in order
to address and deliver against local
priorities.

. . . projects
taking place
in partnership
with the
community

o o o LAPS
or 'Friends of'
groups

. . . collaborative
working with
our strategic
partners

. . . parinerships
and commissioning
arrangements
with the
third sector



Drivers for change

We have many things to consider
when delivering a service to residents.

Our area and its people

Recently released figures from the
2011 Census tell us that Newcastle’s
population has grown by 1.5 per cent
since 2001 and there are now an
estimated 123,900 residents in the
borough.

Our population is ageing, with about
14 per cent more residents aged over
60 than in 2001. The biggest increase
has been amongst people aged over
85 and this is expected to grow
further in the coming years. This
increasing old-age dependency ratio
will have wide ranging implications
on the economy of the borough.

Newcastle-under-Lyme continues to
become more diverse, estimates
suggesting that around five per cent
of residents are from BME communi-
ties, compared with around two per
cent at the time of the 2001 Census.

Our borough is becoming a safer
place to live, work and visit, with
long-term crime rates falling over the
last few years. Reports of anti-social
behaviour have also been falling
steadily over the past four years.

Residents are happy with Newcastle-
under-Lyme as a place to live but in

some areas the fear of crime remains
a concern despite falling crime rates.

The economic downturn has meant
that there has been a seven per cent
reduction in the number of jobs in the
borough between 2006-2010,
meaning that there are now around

3,200 fewer jobs.

Despite this, the rate of unemploy-
ment is not particularly high when
compared to the national picture.
However, long-term worklessness and
benefit dependency due to ill-health
remains a problem.

Business start up rates in Newcastle
are relatively low, but survival rates
for those that do get off the ground
are relatively good.

. . Residents
are happy with
Newcastle

as a place
to live 4/

The Welfare Reform Act

The Act provides for the introduction
of a Universal Credit o replace a
range of existing means-tested
benefits and tax credits for people of
working age, starting from April
2013.

This is the Government's proposals for
reforming welfare to improve work
incentives, simplify the benefits system
and tackle administrative complexity.
Besides introducing Universal Credit
and related measures, the Bill makes
other significant changes to the
benefits system.




Localism Act

The Localism Bill was
introduced to Parliament
in December 2010 and
shifts power from central
government into the
hands of individuals,
communities and
councils.

Localism isn't simply about giving
power back to local government but
to individuals, neighbourhoods,
professionals and communities as
well as local councils and other local
institutions - close fo the people who
are affected by the decisions.

The Localism Bill includes five key
measures that underpin the Govern-
ment's approach to decentralisation:-

e Community Rights

New community rights will ensure that
community organisations have the
Right to Challenge by expressing an
interest in the running of a local
authority service. Communities can
also bid to take over land and
buildings that are important to them
through the Right to Bid.

e Neighbourhood Planning

New rights will allow local comm-
unities to shape new development by
coming together to prepare neigh-
bourhood plans.

e Housing

This will mean that more decisions are
taken locally, allowing councils to
decide how best to help their homeless
people, improve their housing alloca-
tions and give direction to providers
on the type of tenancies suitable to
better meet local housing needs.

e General power of
competence

Councils will be able to take action
and get on with things they think will
benefit their local area. The new
power will give councils the freedom
to work together to improve services,
drive down costs and enhance their
local area.

e Empowering cities and
other local areas

The Act enables the transfer of public
functions to local authorities in order
to improve local accountability or
promote economic growth.



Local Strategies

Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough
Council has three main strategies
linked to its priorities:-

® Economic Development Strategy

® Stronger and Safer Communities
Strategy

® Health and Wellbeing Strategy

These strategies show how the council
is planning to work with partners and
other organisations fo improve and
develop local communities to deliver
our vision for the borough.

The Way We Work (TWWW)

This project was established in Janu-
ary 2011 and stemmed from the
council’s Transformation Programme.
Our aim was to focus resources and
energy on four key projects in order to
achieve efficiencies:-

® Review the way the council uses
its accommodation/offices.

® Home working.
® Flexible working.

@ Electronic document and records
management system.

Examples of areas of work within
these projects included:-

QO Expand home working opportuni-
ties for staff to deliver more
efficiencies.

O  Improving mobile working by
giving officers in the field access
to the right technology.

Q  Improving our Civic Hub to make
public services more accessible
and joined up.

O Reducing paper by scanning
documents and using/storing
them electronically.

QO Becoming more energy efficient.

Work undertaken beneath the
TWWW heading is now being taken
forward in relation to a new
programme of work focused on how
we work with our customers and re-
spond to the government's Welfare
Reform agenda.

Making good use of
public money

Having to do more with less means
we will be looking more creatively at
how we provide, and deliver, our
services over the next four years - on
our own and together with our
partners in the public, private and
voluntary sectors. We will undertake
a strategic review of our assets -
working hard to keep Council Tax
low, maximising our resources and
seeking efficiencies in everything we

do.

Performance
Management Review

The council is always looking to
improve the way it delivers services
and will make the best use of
information to target services o
groups and individuals in our
communities in the most efficient and
effective way. To do this effectively we
need to ensure that we are clear
about what specific outcomes we
want to achieve.

We have recently reviewed our
approach to performance manage-
ment to ensure that we focus much
more on the outcomes that we want to
achieve, and how we measure our
progress.

Page 79



Priorities, Outcomes

and

In this section we have set out, under
each of our priorities, the outcomes
that we are committed to delivering.

For each of the outcomes you will

find:-

® An explanation of why improved
outcomes are needed.

® Activities we will be undertaking
over the next three years to
achieve improvements.

® Performance indicators we will
use to measure our success.

o Alist of targets, linked to each
indicator, showing how we
propose to deliver the improve-
ments over the next three years.

By 2016 the borough will look and
feel like this:-

Activities

A clean, safe and
sustainable borough

Outcomes:-

® Levels of safety will have
improved, along with standards
of public health.

e Newcastle will be safer with
vulnerable victims of crime and
disorder receiving high quality
support.

® The negative impact that the
council, residents and local
businesses have on the
environment will have reduced.

® Our streets and open spaces will
be clean, clear and tidy.

® Town centres across the borough
will be sustainable and safe.

A borough of
opportunity

Ovutcomes:-

e Levels of worklessness will have
reduced.

® Local people will be able to
access opportunities for personal
development and growth.

® Housing will be available and
accessible to meet a range of
diverse needs.

® Key parts of the borough will
have been regenerated and there
will have been overall economic
growth.



A healthy and active

community

Outcomes:-

® People who live, work, visit or
study in the borough will have
access to high quality facilities.

® Llevels of cultural activity and
participation in the arts will have
increased.

® There will be a range of healthy

lifestyle choices, resulting in an
increase in participation in sport
and physical activity.

A co-operative
council delivering
high quality,
community-driven,
services.

Ovutcomes:-

® The council will have increased
the capacity and skills of its
workforce.

Councillors will be community
champions and powerful
community advocates.

The council will have delivered
further efficiencies.

Local communities are engaged
and able to shape and deliver
services which impact on their
lives.

Increasing the resilience in
communities by building effective
and strong partnerships across
the borough and utilising public
and community resources.

Page 81



Priority 1: A clean, safe and sustainable borough

Outcome 1.1
Levels of safety will have improved,
along with standards of public health

Why are the improvements needed?

The council has a duty to protect the public's health and
improve the general quality of life where possible.

We know that ...

® people are injured on the roads
® people suffer food poisoning

® poast historic industries may have caused contaminated

land

You told us that . ..

® you want safer places to eat

® you are concerned about the danger of unrepaired
housing

® you want roads that are safe for the everyone to use

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

Respond to outbreaks of food poisoning o try to
prevent spread and reoccurrence

Contaminated land strategy reviewed and published in

2013

Continue fo inspect food businesses in our planned
programme to ensure they are safe to eat

A new Public Health Strategy to be produced

Performance indicators to measure success
in delivering the outcome

® Number of people killed or seriously injured on the

borough’s roads (1.1.1)

Percentage of food premises that have a zero or one
national food hygiene rating. (1.1.2)

The amount of contaminated land that has been
remediated and is now in use (1.1.3)

Percentage of Category 1 housing disrepair hazards
concerns brought to the attention of the Council that
are investigated and addressed (1.1.4)

The number of food establishments which are broadly
compliant with good hygiene law (1.1.5)

Page 82

10

Outcome 1.2

Newcastle will be safer with vulnerable
victims of crime and disorder receiving
high quality support

Why are the improvements needed?

To offer an optimum service to reassure, support and
protect vulnerable people in the borough.

We know that...

® too many people suffering from incidents of crime and
anti-social behaviour are vulnerable because they are

subject to this repeated behaviour

some victims are more vulnerable than others and need
more support

early intervention is key in tackling and positively
resolving incidences

You told us that . ..

® you want to live in a community where you feel safe

® you want to know that services are available to support
and help when needed

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

Review Anti-Social Behaviour policy 2013

Work with partner organisations and key groups,
together with communities to deal with crime and raise
awareness of support services for the public

Domestic Violence - Early Intervention Worker recruited
to support services

Continuation of funding for Anti-Social Behaviour
Victims Worker

Develop the existing multi-agency conference system to
address the problems faced by vulnerable people

Performance indicators to measure success
in delivering the outcome

® Level of satisfaction with the support provided to
vulnerable citizens (1.2.1)

® Number of interventions to support vulnerable citizens
and victims of crime (1.2.2)

® Reduction in incidents of violence with injury, anti-social
behaviour, serious acquisitive crime and domestic

violence (1.2.3-6)



Priority 1: A clean, safe and sustainable borough

Outcome 1.3

The negative impact that the Council,
residents and local businesses have on
the environment will have reduced

Why are the improvements needed?

We know that ...

® too many carbon emissions is harmful to the
environment and impacts on the quality of life for
residents and visitors alike

® to reduce excess waste the council needs to work with
residents and businesses to minimise residual waste
year on year

You told us that . ..

® you are concerned about the future of the environment

@ you want to maintain the level of the council’s national
award winning recycling service

@ you would want recycling to be reprocessed in the UK

® you would also like to see other types of recycling
introduced such as small appliances

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

@ Continue to monitor air quality in the borough, consult
with residents on findings and devise plans for
monitoring and control of air quality

e Continue to investigate and take action in respect of
nuisance identified in the borough

® |Investigate and implement the kerbside collection of
small electrical appliances and batteries

@ Establish a trial recycling service for businesses and
community buildings

Performance indicators to measure success
in delivering the outcome

® The amount of residual waste per household (1.3.1)

® Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling
and composting (1.3.2)

® The amount of carbon emissions by the Council (1.3.3)

® The number of non-residential collections covered by
the trade waste recycling scheme - includes Council
properties and schools (1.3.4)

e The level of air quality (1.3.5)

® Number of general nuisance complaints (1.3.6)

11

Outcome 1.4
Our streets and open spaces will be

clean, clear and tidy

Why are the improvements needed?

Research has demonstrated that there are clear cross-
cutting links between local environmental quality and other
policy agendas;

We know that ...

Clean, safe, green infrastructure has a vital role in

ensuring mental and physical health.

Good design and high standards of maintenance and
cleansing are vital in reducing anti-social behaviour

and other environmental crime

@ too much litter and detritus in the area does not attract
people to live, work and invest in the area

You told us that . . .

® you are generally satisfied with the cleanliness of our
streets and parks and open spaces but there are “hot

spots” which need to be improved

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

Local Environment Quality (LEQ) surveys (3 per year)
and resultant action plan to tackle hot spots

@ Environmental Education and Enforcement Action Plan

e Community engagement and participation in caring for
local green spaces and neighbourhoods

Service challenge and review to ensure resources are
deployed effectively and efficiently to tackle cleanliness

issues

Performance indicators to measure success

in delivering the outcome

o Levels of street and environment cleanliness (LEQ
survey) free / predominantly free of litter, detritus,

graffiti and fly-posting) (1.4.1)

Number of community volunteer groups/hours spent
caring for their local green spaces and neighbourhoods

(1.4.2)

Quality standards achieved eg Britain in Bloom, Green

Flag Awards (1.4.3)

Satisfaction with cleanliness of streets and green spaces

(1.4.4)

Page 83



Priority 1: A clean, safe and sustainable borough

Outcome 1.5
Town centres across the borough will
be sustainable and safe

Why are the improvements needed?

The town centres within the borough play a vital role in
providing employment, local services and entertainment for
residents and visitors. The challenge is to ensure each
centre remains sustainable and safe despite any economic
downturn. For economic growth there is a need to work
with other agencies and partnerships to keep the town
centres as safe as possible and that crime is kept at a low
level.

We know that...

® you value the fown centres and want the council to
ensure they remain vibrant and attractive - visually and
economically

@ itis important to develop fown centres for the future

You told us that . . .

® regeneration for the borough'’s fown centres is
important to you

® you are concerned about levels of crime

® you are also concerned about visiting the town centre
at night

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

@ Town centre partnership established in Kidsgrove and
Newcastle and town plans developed

® Scoping exercise to be undertaken of footfall within the
town centre

e To take forward the retail-led redevelopment of the
former Sainsbury/Ryecroft site.

e Completion of public realm improvements in the town
centre and introduction of new market stalls

e Complete the gating off of problematic alleyways under
the Green Routes scheme

® Attain a purple flag for the safety of night time
economy

Page 84

12

Performance indicators to measure success
in delivering the outcome
® Town centre vacancy rate (1.5.1)

® Percentage of investment portfolio (NBC owned) vacant
(1.5.2)

® levels of crimes in our town centres (1.5.3)

® Level of safety of town centres as indicated by residents
(1.5.4)

® The level of town centre attractiveness as indicated by
residents (1.5.5)




Priority 2: A borough of opportunity

Outcome 2.1 Outcome 2.2
Levels of worklessness will have Local people will be able to access
reduced opportunities for personal development

and growth

Why are the improvements needed? Why are the improvements needed?

The level of unemployment in the borough is 2.6% at The council understands the importance of working wih
November 2012 which is lower than the regional and partners to ensure there are opportuninties available to
national rates. Amongst people aged 18 to 24 years the access to support development.

level increases to 4% (compared to 8.7% in the West

Midlands and 7% in Great Britain).

We know that ® it is important to provide a wide range of activities to
support our communities

® itis key to raise skill levels to help drive enterprise, to

_ ® volunteering activities need fo be encouraged and
create more and better jobs

supported
@ training opportunities for people to develop and gain

confldence IS essenho| You 'I'OId us I'hul' ...

You told us that ® you are concerned whether opportunities will be limited
in the future

® you are concerned about levels of worklessness in the
borough

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

® Work with Newcastle Employment and Skills Group
(NESG,) fo identify areas for improvement and further

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

® Plans to encourage enterprise wthin the borough to be opportunities
developed

@ Town Centre Partnership action plan

i , o Performance indicators to measure success
® Work with the “Make it” initiative

in delivering the outcome

@ Support given to unemployed by the Newcastle

F I e @ The number (or percentage) of people obtaining NVQ

levels (2.2.1)

® The number of people gaining additional educational
qualifications as a result of Council-backed initiatives

Performance indicators to measure success

. o ¢ (2.2.2)
in delivering the outcome
: ® The number of volunteers used by the council/taken on
@ The level of employment in the borough (2.1.1) by the council who go on to gain employment (2.2.3)
o "I'h‘e. nt.megr of jobs created by Council-backed ® Narrative on the impact of the Council’s role as
initiatives in the borough (2.1.2) employer of volunteers (2.2.4)
e The pt'ercentage of people of working age claiming ® Number of organisations working with the council to
benefits (2.1.3) take on volunteers (2.2.5)
e The level of NEETs (2.1.4) ® Number of hours worked by volunteers in council

co-ordinated activities (2.2.6)

Page 85
13



Priority 2: A borough of opportunity

Outcome 2.3
Housing will be available and accessible
to meet a range of diverse needs

Performance indicators to measure success

Why are the improvements needed?

in delivering the outcome

Housing is most frequently cited in terms of its appropri-
ateness and affordability. @ The number of affordable homes provided as a result

Appropriate housing meets the needs of residents in terms
of size, physical attributes and location. Affordable hous-
ing includes affordable rented and intermediate housing,

of partnership working with Registered Providers and
the Homes & Communities Agency (2.3.1)

@ The net number of additional homes provided (2.3.2)

provided to specific eligible households whose needs are ® Number'of emphy properiies|broughtlback info use
not met by the market. With many local residents unable (2.3.3)

to access a home that meets their needs, it is important
that the council works with local housing providers to de-
liver needed accommodation.

® Percentage of referrals for Disabled Facilities Grants
(DFG) approved within six months (2.3.4)

We know that . .. ® Percentage of minor adaptations delivered within four
months (2.3.5)

® Number of homelessness cases prevented (2.3.6)

e there is a lack of suitable available housing in the
borough

® there are nearly 3,000 households on the housing
register wanting affordable housing

You told us that . ..

® you prefer affordable longer term tenancies with
greater security

® you are concerned about homelessness

® you are concerned about increasing fuel bills and want
to be able to keep your home warm

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

® Partnership working with Registered Providers and the
Homes and Communities Agency to deliver new
affordable housing in line with the Local Investment Plan

e Delivery of new homes at Charter Road

® Encouragement and support to private home owners to
return their empty properties back into use

@ Development of Eco brokerage service

Page 86
14



Priority 2: A borough of opportunity

Outcome 2.4

Key parts of the borough will have
been regenerated and there will have
been overall economic growth

Performance indicators to measure success

Why are the improvements needed?

To enable further growth of the borough, the council needs in delivering the outcome

to attract inward investment from the private sector. To ® Level of economic hedlth across the borough (2.4.1)
facilitate this the Council will work with the private sector

. . . ® Percentage of investment portfolio which is vacant
and partners to bring forward suitable and viable 9 P

development opportunities. (2.4.2)
@ Small and medium sized enterprises (SMEs) showing
We know that employement growth (2.4.3)

@ Buildings within the built heritage asset register

® to provide more employment opportunities, more suitable improved and no longer of risk (2.4.4)

development sites to attract investment are needed : :
@ Number of proposed jobs from successful planning

lications (2.4.5
You told us that . .. applications ( )

_ : Rate of new VAT business registration (2.4.6)
(] tion in t is i tant t
SRR IS B e 7o Average stall occupancy rate for markets (2.4.7)

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

® Work with Make It inward investment service for
Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire to promote the area
for inward investment

Bring forward attractive development sites
® Marketing of specific development opportunities

® Work with Business Enterprise Support (BES) to help in
the delivery of its enterprise support scheme

e Delivery of the Annual Newcastle Business Boost
competition

@ Consultation to be undertaken by the council with
communities on a draft Site Allocation Policies Local
Plan

Develop coordinated enterprise strategy

Support development of the emergent knowledge
intensive sectors

@ Support development of professional and business
services sectors

® Make the most of the Borough's successful logistics
sector

® Promote further development of Keele Science and
Business Park

15



Priority 3: A healthy and active community

Outcome 3.1 Outcome 3.2

People who live, work, visit or study in  Levels of cultural activity and

the borough will have access to high participation in the arts will have
quality facilities increased

Why are the improvements needed? Why are the improvements needed?

The Council is committed to ensuring there are high Involvement in artistic and cultural activities is beneficial
quality facilities available to residents and visitors to the physically, mentally and emotionally for young and older
borough. Significant capital development at J2 has people.

resulted in increased participation and substantial

® the cultural facilities contribute significantly to the

o ey itiie o o economy of the borough

® it is important to recognise the vital role that being

> . ) @ it is important for the council to encourage cultural
active plays in the lives of everyone

activity in the borough to ensure people can enhance
® access to well equipped and safe facilities is important their life experiences

You told us that . ..

You told us that . . .

@ you want quality and affordable leisure services @ the availability of local events and facilities to visit are

important in your lives
® you want open spaces and parks to be safe places to P 4

visit

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome: ® Programme of cultural events and exhibitions

Development programme for volunteers

e Full feasibility study developed for the refurbishment/
replacement of Kidsgrove Sports centre

Multi-agency Arts Strategy to be developed

® Complete the review of community centres Feasibility study into the development of the museum to

Develop outline business case for future management/ meet future aspirations
governance of leisure and cultural services

Performance indicators to measure success
Performance indicators to measure success in delivering the outcome
in delivering the outcome

® Visitor satisfaction (3.2.1)
@ Number of parks which have green flag status (3.1.1) Nttty o sl v mssn (5 2 7
o Llevel of(;qqlsf;;chon with Council-run parks and open e Number of people attending local theatres (3.2.3)
spaces (3.1.
o E ic impact of visitors t 3.2.4
® Level of satisfaction with Council-run a) leisure and SIS SR SRl ST )
b) cultural services (3.1.3) ® Impact of volunteer development programme (3.2.5)
® Level of satisfaction with Council-owned car parking ® Impact of community-run cultural events and people
facilities (3.1.4) attending (3.2.6)

® Llevels of satisfaction with bereavement services (3.1.5)

® Level of service quality of the two main Council
information centres — Guildhall and Kidsgrove (3.1.6)

® Percentage of town centres public toilets that meet the
Council’s minimum standard for quality and cleanliness

3.1.7)
Fgage 88
16



Priority 3: A healthy and active community

Outcome 3.3

There will be a range of healthy lifestyle
choices, resulting in an increase in par-
ticipation in sport and physical activity

Why are the improvements needed?

The council wants to encourage people to adopt healthier

lifestyles.

We know that ...

® too many people do not exercise on a regular basis

o well equipped, accessible and affordable facilities are
necessary

You told us that . . .

® leisure facilities and play areas are very important to
you

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

® Sportivate programme to encourage younger people to
participate in physical activities

® Sportmakers programme to increase adult participation
Healthy walk programme

Delivery of programme of healthy initiatives with
partners including:
GP referral scheme
Cardiac rehabilitation scheme
Joint/muscle mobility exercise

® Allotment policy review

Delivery of improvement projects to outdoor
sport facilities

Performance indicators to measure success

in delivering the outcome

® The percentage of primary school children who are
categorised as obese (3.3.1)

® The number of referrals from GPs to organised
sporting activity (3.3.2)

® Percentage of people referred for exercise by GPs
whose health improves (3.3.3)

® The number of teenage pregnancies (3.3.4)

® The number of premature deaths (3.3.5)

Page 89
17



Priority 4: A co-operative Council, delivering high-value,

community-driven services

Outcome 4.1 Outcome 4.2

The Council will have increased the Councillors will be community

capacity and skills of its workforce champions and powerful community
advocates

Why are the improvements needed? Why are the improvements needed?

In order to maintain high levels of service and deliver Communities need representation and support in order to
efficiencies, the capacity and skills of our existing empower their communities.
workforce need to continue to be developed.

We know that...
We know that...

e Good communication is necessary to understand the

® our customers expect a high standard of service when needs of communities of the borough and also to
they contact the council . ensure that the council delivers clear, transparent
® our customers want easy access to multiple agency messages of what they have achieved or want to
services at convenient locations. Joint working and improve upon
engagement with partners in day to day service
f:le|ivery provid(j:s a vc1|ua'b|'e learning environment that You told us that . . .
improves the skills of the joint workforce

® you want to know what is planned which will impact
You told us that . .. upon your community

® you are concerned that services may suffer as a result
of the economy

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

e Delivery of Scrutiny work plan

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

® Training programme for members

® Delivery of the Workforce Development Plan
® Develop a Shared Apprenticeship Scheme with partners
. g Performance indicators to measure success
® Development of e-learning facilities . .,
) L in delivering the outcome

® Increasing the ways in which customers can contact us,

by providing greater choice - developing self service, ® Percentage of elected members who have a personal

web services, SMS, email and other means of contact - development plan (4.2.1)

linked fo customer need Impact of actions from the work plan (4.2.2)

() Dehvz‘ further csusto.merEser\illce trcunlng todconhnue fo Percentoge S G p|onneo| meeﬁngs by
meet Customer Service Excellence standards. - ( 4'2'3)

® Programme of skills development for ICT to ensure we

maximise the benefits of existing and new technology ® Number of issues raised by members [4.2.4)

Percentage of candidates and agents satisfied/

— very satisfied with electoral service (4.2.5)
Performance indicators to measure success

in delivering the outcome

@ Number of apprenticeships /shared apprenticeship
placements offered (4.1.1)

® Percentage of workforce with completed learning and
development plans (4.1.2)

® Percentage of staff who have completed accredited
training courses (4.1.3)

® Number of e-learning modules completed (4.1.4)

® Percentage of staff who feel they have the necessary

Plalg/ é)fgﬁencies to do their job effectively (4.1.5)

18



Priority 4: A co-operative Council, delivering high-value,

community-driven services

Outcome 4.3
The Council will have delivered further
efficiencies

Why are the improvements needed?

We want to ensure services are delivered efficiently and
of high quality fo its customers. The council strives to
deliver effective services within the restraints of its budget.

We know that ...

e the economic downturn may impact upon the council
and add further pressure to its budget with a greater
demand for its services.

You told us that . ..

® you are concerned about the council being more
efficient and effective

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

® Medium Term Financial Strategy reviewed annually
and reported

® Monthly budget monitoring programme

@ Delivery of the Procurement (Strategic) work plan

Performance indicators to measure success

in delivering the outcome

® Percentage of planned procurement efficiencies
achieved (4.3.1)

® Percentage projected variance against full year counci

budget (4.3.2)

® Average number of days per employee lost to
sickness (4.3.3)

® Percentage of residents who feel that the Council is
providing value for money (4.3.4)

® Achieving a balanced budget (4.3.5)
® Percentage return on council investments (4.3.4)

@ Ratio of planned versus responsive maintenance
expenditure on all Council owned buildings (4.3.7)

® Net income collected from Council assets (4.3.8)

Page 91
19



Priority 4: A co-operative Council, delivering high-value,

community-driven services

Outcome 4.4

Local communities are engaged and
able to shape and deliver services
which impact on their lives

Why are the improvements needed?

To impact on solving problems of everyday life in local
communities, the people need to be able to see how their
views can shape the solutions that will make a lasting
difference in the way services are delivered. In doing this
the Council will be an open, honest and transparent
organisation which undertakes regular consultation with
its residents and listens fo their views.

We know that ...

e different communities have problems to face unique to

their neighbourhood
support is necessary to encourage engagement

communication within a community and involvement of
stakeholders is key to solving solutions

You told us that . ..

@ you do not always feel you have the confidence or skills
necessary to be involved or influence decision making
in your community

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

Support to groups from funded infrastructure project
Develop communities around the localism agenda

Focus on dealing with troubled families and enhancing
community involvement and self-reliance

Further Community Pride events to deal with community
issues

Page 92

20

Performance indicators to measure success
in delivering the outcome

e Level of satisfaction with the role of the Council in
supporting communities to solve local problems, as
indicated by local people (4.4.1)

Level of satisfaction with the Council’s support to
communities, as indicated by partner organisations

(4.4.2)

The impact of the Council’s support in empowering
communities to solve specific local problems (4.4.3)

The overall level of satisfaction with the Council as a
provider of services (4.4.4)

Percentage of people who feel that they can influence
Council decisions (4.4.5)

Level of satisfaction with the support provided to LAPs
and other community groups to improve their
organisational strength (4.4.6)

Increase the number of residents, community and
voluntary groups engaged with LAPs (4.4.7)

Percentage of requests resolved at first point of contact

(4.4.8)



Priority 4: A co-operative Council, delivering high-value,

community-driven services

Outcome 4.5

Increasing the resilience in communities
by building effective and strong part-
nerships across the borough, and utilis-
ing public and community resources

Why are the improvements needed?

In order to deliver appropriate and optimum services to
the people of the borough it is necessary for the council to
continue to work with existing partners and develop
strong new partnerships across all sectors. Also, the
Borough Council recognises that the priorities set by the
council cannot be delivered by the council alone.

We know that ...

® sirong partnerships are necessary to progress our
outcomes effectively

You told us that . . .

® you would like to see more partnership working
involving the council

Activities aimed at delivering the outcome:

Investigate opportunities to develop a Social Enterprise
with key partner agencies

Build on relationships with the voluntary and community
sector in delivering key services to local people

Deliver the Lets Work Together (LWT) project in
partnership with others

Develop and implement a Co-operative Strategy for the
council with other key stakeholders

Develop health promotion work in areas of greatest
need

Map vulnerability across the Borough and its
neighbourhoods to target services more effectively

Welfare reform - to be delivered with partners

21

Performance indicators to measure success
in delivering the outcome

e Community/citizen satisfaction levels increased (4.5.1)

e Communities feel they are able to influence decisions

(4.5.2)
® Engagement with LAPs increased (4.5.3)
e Quality of service delivery (4.5.4)

® Knowledge amongst public about co-operative
approaches (4.5.5)

Decrease in anti-social behaviour levels and domestic
violence - linked to LWT project (4.5.6)

People feeling safe in their homes and fear of crime
lessened (4.5.7)

Page 93



Newcastle-under-Lyme
Borough Council Plan

NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME
www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

2013-14 10 2015-16




TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES OSC WORK PLAN

Title Forward | Scrutiny Method | Progress to Date/Actions from Last Meeting Expected Expected
Plan Completion Outcomes/Date for
Item? Date Progress to be assessed
Revenue and Capital Budget Yes Full Committee Report outlining timetable and scrutiny process to be | Feb 2014 Scrutiny undertaken
received 20.05.2013 annually by TROSC
Capital Strategy Yes Full Committee Expected December 2013 Feb 2014 Scrutiny undertaken
annually by TROSC
Treasury Management Strategy Yes Full Committee Expected November 2013 Feb 2014 Scrutiny undertaken
annually by TROSC
Scale of Fees and Charges Yes Full Committee Expected January 2014 Feb 2014 Scrutiny undertaken
annually by TROSC
Asset Management Strategy Yes Full Committee Expected December 2013
Financial and Performance Management Full Committee e Continue to monitor and scrutinise performance Rolling Report received on a
Report (GREEN) alongside finances & that quarterly reports are Scrutiny rolling quarterly basis
provided to TROSC
e Toinclude J2 figures (income over target)
e Quarter 4 2012/13 report expected Q1 13/14
e New style performance report expected in Sept
Review of the Constitution (AMBER) Working Group: | ¢ Toremain as a living doc to be kept under review | Rolling
Clirs Shenton, e Report from wg received at Council on 24.04.2013 | Scrutiny
Holland & Snell e Update report from wg to be received 20.05.2013
Modernisation of the Post Office Network | No TBC e To consider modernisation of the Post Office

network & the possibility of partnership working
Presentation received from PO rep 19.11.2012.
TROSC have awaited an LGA report before
proceeding. LGA report now published and to be
discussed 20.05.13, with view to identifying
elements for a scrutiny brief.

Universal Credit

Presentation received from Head of Revs & Bens
07.03.2013. This was made available to all ClIrs on
22.04.2013.

Further update expected Q3 2013/14.

G6 abed

TT Way-epusby



TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES OSC WORK PLAN




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	4 The Reporter
	Reporter Report from Phil Jones - TO BE PRINTED IN COLOUR

	5 Financial and Performance Management Report, Quarter 4 2012/13
	NBC Qtr 4 performance monitoring report period 2012 Q4 v10 02 05 13

	6 Budget Preparation, Scrutiny and Approval Process 2014/2015
	7 Constitution Working Party
	8 Modernisation of the Post Office Network
	Political_Stakeholder_Pathfinder1

	9 Keele Golf Course - Interim Maintenance and Management Arrangements and Long Term Options
	10 Council Plan 2013-16
	Council plan 2013-16 final version @9 5 13

	11 Work Plan

